Town of Harwich

COUNCIL ON AGING BOARD MEETING
WEDNESDAY January 6, 2021 10:00AM

Remote Participation Only

Council on Aging Board of Directors
Wednesday, January 6, 2021 10:00 AM

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/646368213

You can also dial in using your phone.
United States: +1 (646) 749-3122

Access Code: 646-368-213

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/646368213

L Call to Order

Pursuant to Governor Baker’s March 12, 2020 Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting
Law, G.L. c. 30A, §18, and the Governor’s March 15, 2020 Order imposing strict limitations on the
number of people that may gather in one place, this meeting of the Harwich Council on Aging Board of
Directors is being conducted via remote participation. No in-person attendance of members of the public
will be permitted, but every effort will be made to ensure that the public can adequately access the
proceedings as provided for in the Order.

II. Approval of Minutes
A. Approval of Minutes from the December 2, 2020 COA Board of Directors Meetings **
(VOTE REQUIRED)

I11. Public Comment

V. Chair’s Comments (R. Waystack)
A. Check in with Members

V. Director’s Report (E. Mitchell)**

Overview of current and anticipated COA Operations
Review of Holiday Programming

Programming Updates

COA Volunteer needs, recruitment, and training

FY 2022 COA Budget — initial departmental request

MONwp

VL Old Business
A. Review of Annual COA Board of Directors Meeting with the Board of Selectmen on
December 14, 2020 at 6:30 PM

VII.  New Business
A. Update from Elder Services Board Liaison (J. Lepore)

VIII. Member Comments



IX. Adjournment

*Supporting information available at the Harwich Council on Aging

REMINDER: Next HCOA Board Meeting — February 3, 2021 at 10 AM
Authorized Posting Officer: Posted by:

Town Clerk
Lty Mitchel¥ Date:  December 30, 2020

Signature




Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
Harwich Council on Aging Board of Directors Meeting
Wednesday, December 2, 2020, 10 AM
Remote Participation Only

Meeting Attendance:

Board Members: Chair Richard Waystack, Carol Thayer, Joanne Lepore, Ralph Smith, and
Angelina Raneo Chilaka

COA Staff Member: Director Emily Mitchell
1. Call to Order:
The meeting was called to order by the Chair Richard Waystack at 10:05 am

Il Approval of Minutes
Joanne Lepore made motion to approve the minutes from the November 4, 2020 COA
Board of Directors meeting. The motion was seconded by Angellna Chilaka. Unanimous
vote among members present to approve.
1. Public Comments: None
Iv. Chair’s Comments (R. Waystack): The Chair thanked Carol Thayer, Vice Chair, for
running the November 4, 2020 meeting in his absence.
V. Director’s Report (E. Mitchell)
A. Overview of current and anticipated COA operations — operations are largely
unchanged from last month. Continued priority for community based services
(lunch program, transportation, grocery/pharmacy assistance) and ongoing 1:1
onsite appointments with staff and professionals (Elder Law attorneys, podiatry
care providers, Mobile Dental Hygiene Clinic, Wellness Clinic). As numbers increase,
COA staff are asking people to seek assistance by phone or email whenever
possible. The COA may have to further scale back in person services if numbers
continue to increase.
B. Programming updates
1. Holiday Programming — The COA prepared and delivered 70 Thanksgiving
meals. There will be a winter holiday meal distribution, also with a capacity
of 70, on December 22, 2020. Meals are offered on a first come, first serve
basis. The COA implemented a dedicated phone line to take and track sign
ups to ensure everyone has equal access and opportunity to participate. The
COA also plans to partner with Kiwanis for the annual Cranberry Bread
distribution program.
2. Ordinary Programming — Betty Brady, longtime provider of podiatry care at
the Harwich COA, is retiring. Thank you for her years of service and care.
She has brought on her own replacement, Autumn Knight, who will be



VI.
VII.

VIl

C.

taking over Betty’s schedule. Emily is also working with a podiatry doctor in

Chatham to expand onsite offerings.
COA Volunteer needs, recruitment, and training — Since the last meeting, there has
been an increase in volunteer drivers to assist with our lunch program. We have
also has several new volunteers express interest in assisting with the COA website.
We currently have sufficient volunteer coverage of the COA reception area based
on our capacity and programming restrictions. Ralph Smith commented that Julie
Witas, Social Services Coordinator, is doing an incredible job coordinating volunteer
efforts.
FY 22 COA Budget — updates re budget directives and preliminary departmental
request — The budget directive from the Interim Town Administrator is that all
departments level fund relative to FY 21. Initial departmental requests must be
submitted by December 4, 2020. Anticipated changes at this time: Increases —
postage for newsletter, proposed staffing reorganization to replace Program
Specialist 1 position with a Program Specialist 2; Decreases: Copier costs — current
lease is set to expire. Emily is looking into purchasing a copier to cut down on costs.
Other impact: level funding will dramatically affect the lunch program. FY 21
funding supports 60 meals/day after a period of time where food costs of FEMA
reimbursable. FEMA reimbursement is anticipated to end prior to FY 22. Keeping
the same level of town funding, without the FEMA support, would reduce meal
capacity to 40-45 meals per day, rather than 60.

Old Business: None
New Business

A.

The annual COA Board of Directors meeting with the Board of Selectmen is

scheduled for Monday, December 14, 2020, at 6:30 PM. The meeting will be held by

remote participation only and COA Board members are encouraged to attend.

Emily will share the meeting credentials and final COA Board report prior to the

December 14 meeting.

Thank you letter from COA Board to Friends of COA for their support of FY 21

newsletter postage costs. Consensus to have Richard Waystack sign on behalf of

the COA Board.

Update from Elder Services Board Liaison (J. Lepore)

a. Joanne was unable to attend the November/December Elder Services Board

meeting held on December 1, 2020. The next meeting is scheduled for
January 26, 2021.

Member Comments

A.

B.

Ralph Smith asked about the cost per meal for the lunch program. Emily answered
that it is approximately $4/meal.
All members thanked the COA staff or their work

Adjournment



Ralph Smith made the motion to adjourn at 10:36 AM. Joanne Lepore seconded the
motion. Unanimous vote among members present.

Next meeting: Wednesday, January 6, 2021, 10 AM, by remote participation only



Overview of COA COVID Operations - December 2020 Update

Since the onset of COVID-19, the COA has developed or modified the following programs to respond to
the needs and interests of Harwich seniors, family, and caregivers. We have prioritized this set of core
services which are designed to meet essential needs. These services have evolved and expanded since
they were first implemented in March. We will continue to expand upon these services - and continue to
work towards introducing new services and programs - in the weeks and months to come.

Community Lunch Distribution

All meals are cold, nutritionally balanced, and safe to be packed and transported

New: Anticipated for January 2021 — working with Health Director to expand menu, serve
meals that can be reheated and eaten hot.

Delivered by a combination of staff and volunteers

Capacity: 70 meals/day. We are at capacity and currently have a short waiting list for this service.
Currently serving 85 unique individuals (possible because many recipients do not receive meals
all 5 days/week)

Revised policy for recipients who repeatedly are not home during scheduled deliveries (after third
time not home, with no call to cancel, will be temporarily suspended from service. Emergency
situations exempted)

Transportation

Strict safety, sanitation, and capacity protocols remain in place

Current capacity: 2 riders/trip on 12-passenger van, 1 rider/trip on 8-passenger van (Note:
temporary two week capacity reduction to 1 rider/trip on both vans following Christmas
holiday)

Locations: grocery stores, pharmacies, bank, Post Office, essential medical appointments
Volunteer Medical Driver program remains suspended

New: Resumption of stricter screening for passengers — pre-screening questions re recent
travel, symptoms, participation in gatherings with people outside the household - before
booking ride.

Grocery/Pharmacy Support

Transportation to grocery stores/pharmacies

Arranging for volunteers to pick up groceries and/or medications (under certain circumstances)
and delivering them, contact free, to seniors

Placing, picking up, and delivering orders from the Family Pantry

Brown Bag program has continued unabated (with a transition to increased staff, rather than
volunteer, support in packing and distributing groceries)

Social Support Phone Calls

Coordinated a social support phone tree where seniors place calls to each other several times per
week to check in, build relationships, and reduce isolation



Programming

At home programming — still distributing Activity Kits and Home Exercise Kits
Gearing up to offer remote programming opportunities via Zoom

o New: Received guidance from Town Counsel regarding remote programming
liability. Better equipped to move forward organizing remote programming with
that information.

o New: Regional effort among Cape COAs (organized through Director’s group:
COAST) to provide remote programming that is available to residents from all Cape
Towns. See January/February 2021 offerings in newsletter (attached)

Community Storytelling Project — still accepting submissions! — Publicized in COA and Cultural
Center newsletters, website, Channel 18, and Harwich Neighbors magazine. New article in the
Chronicle on 12/17/20. Extended Deadline to February 1, 2021!

Mask Distribution

Free washable masks (1/person) available for Harwich seniors (60+), caregivers to seniors, or
family members living with seniors

Onsite Services

Continued 1:1 appointments with COA staff, for DME donation/distribution

Expanded 1:1 professional services in September: Elder Law Attorney appointments, podiatry
care, Wellness/Blood Pressure Clinic with Town Nurse, Mobile Dental Hygiene Clinic

New: Temporary reduction in onsite services for end of December and beginning of
January in response to increasing case counts and anticipated additional increase following
holiday gatherings — canceled January 6" podiatry clinic, transitioned legal appointments to
remote contact, greatly reduced Wellness Clinic appointments.

QOutreach Services

Fuel Assistance application season

Expanded Caleb Chase Fund program

Assistance with other benefits applications

Plan to resume community outreach is on hold in light of current public health trends.

Recap of Holiday Programs:

Thanksgiving meal (11/24/20): 70 hot meals (turkey, mashed potatoes, green bean casserole,
gravy, stuffing, dessert) prepared by Town Chef Linda St. Pierre and delivered by volunteers
Winter Holiday meal (12/22/20): 70 hot meals (roast pork, roasted potatoes, veggies, rolls,
dessert) prepared and delivered

Potted Plants for Seniors: Non-profit provided 110 potted plants and small gifts delivered by
COA

Holiday gifts: 180 gifts delivered (donated by community members: cards, small gifts, and gift
cards)

Cranberry bread (partnership with Kiwanis): 40 breads delivered



Town of Harwich |

COUNCIL ON AGING NEWS

Harwich Community Center ~ 100 Oak Street ~ Harwich, MA 02645 b
Tel: 508-430-7550 ~ Fax: 508-430-7530

January/Februa

The mission of the Harwich Council on Aging is
to support and advocate for older adults, their families, and caregivers.

A Heartfelt Thank You
As we wrap up the holiday season and enter the new year, |
wanted to take this opportunity to say thank you. While 2020
presented us with many new challenges and profound losses, it
has also offered many reasons to be thankful.

To the seniors in our community, thank you for the opportunity
to serve and work alongside you. Your knowledge, feedback,
insight, passion, and participation in COA programs and broader
community is invaluable. Thank you for your flexibility as we’ve
navigated changing programs, new safety protocols, and staffing
transitions, and for your resiliency in the face of new and
continuing adversities.

To our volunteers, long-time and new, thank you for your
passionate service to this community. Some of you have been
here for decades and others for days or weeks. We could never
provide the scope of services we offer without all of your
dedicated support. You're the first face for visitors and voice for
callers, the dedicated drivers carrying coolers filled with lunches
to ensure everyone has a nutritious meal, the friendly visitors
and phone support systems, the experts in health insurance,
taxes, and legal topics, and really some of the best people | have
the honor to know.

To the COA Board, thank you for your dedication of time and
expertise in shaping department policy, supporting operations,
and for your tireless advocacy for the needs of seniors,
caregivers, and families.

To the Friends of the COA, thank you for the services you provide
directly to older adults in the forms of nutrition, transportation,
socialization, and medical equipment, and for your generous
financial support to both the department and to individual
seniors facing emergency situations.

To our other Town departments, thank you for your partnership.
We are particularly lucky to share this intentional, intergenera-
tional space at the Community Center (the building turns 21 in
February — Happy Birthday!) which provides meeting space,
event collaborations, and an unparalleled network of support. A
further thank you to our public safety members who are
dedicated to seniors’ safety, health, and holistic well-being and
consistently go above and beyond in support of our community.

And | would be remiss if | did not thank the rest of our COA team.
| work with the most dedicated, compassionate, creative, and
hard-working individuals — thank you for your unending
advocacy, professionalism, expertise, and commitment to our
community.

With immense gratitude,

Emily

DIRECTOR'’S DIALOGUE

Happy New Year! | hope that you found ways to
experience joy and connection during the holidays, even
though they looked very different this year. | want to
thank all the members of our community who
supported COA holiday programs — volunteers who delivered meals,
Kiwanis for donating delicious cranberry breads, and the many
Jeenerous individuals who donated gifts and cards for us to distribute
to seniors.

As | write this in mid-December, we are in an interesting time. We
have great news about highly effective vaccines that are almost ready
to distribute to health care workers, people in congregate care
settings, and first responders, and soon after to other high risk individ-
uals and older adults more broadly. We have people working tirelessly
at the regional level including our Cape legislators Julian Cyr and Sarah
[Peake, as well as Barnstable County Human Services and Emergency
Management, to bring expanded and affordable testing to the Cape.
Simultaneously, we are seeing dramatically increased case numbers, a
Ireturn to earlier phases of the state’s reopening plan, and a reduction
in services that had resumed when case counts and community spread
were lower. We remain thankful for the progress and good news, and
mindful of the need to maintain caution and strict adherence to pre-
ventative measures like social distancing, mask wearing, and limiting
outings to only essential locations and gatherings to people in our
households.

At the COA, you'll notice a few changes in response to these trends.
Jwhile we had tried to accommodate walk-ins on a limited basis, we
will be strictly adhering to our appointment only policy going forward
— if you come by without an appointment, we will have to turn you
laway. This our best mechanism to abide by appropriate sanitation and
contact tracing protocols and to maintain the health and safety of staff
and residents. If you have an appointment, we'll be asking routine
Iscreening questions, enforcing sign in protocols, and requiring that
people not enter the building until their exact appointment time.

e’re committed to providing limited onsite services for the benefit of

ur community; these measures help ensure that we can do so safely!

nd of course, we encourage you to reach out any time by phone and

mail as well!

INSIDE!
Current COA Programs & Services ......cocevivvvvrieinns pp. 2-3
Lunch & Program Details........cccccovniiiiinnniiiiniiiniinn, p.4
Councils on Aging Serving Together (COAST)

Transportation
Share Your Story...
Qutreach News......
Health News
Volunteer NEWS.......ccvmvcienniinsininesiinssnnsnenns
Caregiver & Community Resources

Town & Community Updates .....cccceevveeviieriinneineeenns g
Friends’ NeWs ......coovvvviiveiiiiinienns
Recipes




The programs described on pages 2 & 3 are available as of
this writing in mid-December.

LUNCH DISTRIBUTION
NO COST

We are offering a daily lunch distribution to
support seniors who are self-isolating at home. See page 4
for details!

Monday—Friday

PHARMACY ASSISTANCE ]
NO COST

COA staff or volunteer will pick up your prescrip-

tion medication and bring it to your home if the following
conditions are met: (1) Rx is filled at CVS, Shaws, or Stop &
Shop in Harwich, and (2) No copay is due (we cannot pay
for medication on your behalf, even if you are willing to
reimburse). To make a request, call Julie at 508-430-7550.

Monday—Friday

Visiting the COA

Like most town offices, the COA is open by
appointment only for the foreseeable future. Un-
fortunately, we cannot provide walk-in service at
this time. We have learned that a lot
can be accomplished from a distance!
When a visit to the COA is needed, we
ask that you follow these procedures:

¢ Please wait outside or in your car

until your appointment time. If the person you
are meeting with is able to see you early, they
will call your cell phone (we will ask for that

number when you schedule the appointment).

¢ Please wear a mask/face covering inside the
building and on the pathways outside,
especially if you cannot maintain 6 feet of
distance between yourself and others.

+ If you come into the COA offices, please sign in
for the purpose of contact tracing.

GROCERY ASSISTANCE
Call to schedule NO COST

If you are trying to avoid the grocery store,
we can help! Read this section for details,
then contact the COA: 508-430-7550 or
jwitas@town.harwich.ma.us.

The COA can pick up and deliver groceries from the Family
Pantry at no cost. The Family Pantry offers a full range of
groceries, including perishables such as milk, eggs, meats,
bread, and produce. The Pantry provides a “Shopping List”
of their available items, and your selections are made from
this list.

How to Order:

1. Call or email the COA to request a copy of the current
Family Pantry Shopping List.

2. When you have your selections ready, call the COA to
give your order over the phone. (We accept orders
every day of the week, and hold them to be filled on the
next scheduled delivery day.)

3. We submit orders to the Family Pantry, where a volun-
teer will gather and bag up the groceries for each order.

4. COA staff or volunteer picks up the groceries from the
Pantry and delivers them to your home. We will leave
the bags right outside your front door. (You must be
home at the time of delivery.)

More details:

= Currently, all deliveries are made on
Tuesdays, approximately 1pm-3pm.

= You must place your order no later than Monday 3pm
for Tuesday delivery (Friday if Monday is a holiday).

= The Family Pantry allows you to shop every two weeks.

= There is no charge for the groceries or the delivery.
Donations to The Family Pantry are gratefully accepted
to offset food costs, but there is no obligation to donate.

= Service availability is dependent on Pantry capacity and
COA volunteer or staff availability. Please give as much
notice as possible when placing your order.

The COA also keeps a small supply of

non-perishable basics on site for urgent

needs. If you know someone who needs

help today, please call us! 508-430-7550.
2




WELLNESS & BLOOD PRESSURE CLINIC
Town Nurse Susan Jusell, RN NO COST
Thursdays 9:30am—12:00pm, by appointment

Now on Thursdays—Meet with the nurse to have your
blood pressure taken, ask health related questions, or dis-
cuss your health needs. Visits occur in the COA’s “Glass
Room”. All visitors to the Council on Aging must wait

outside or in their cars until their appointment time. To
schedule an appointment, call the COA at 508-430-7550.

LEGAL ASSISTANCE—In Person

Attorney Michael Lavender NO COST
Wednesdays January 27 & February 24

Do you have a legal question? Schedule a free half-hour
consultation with attorney Michael Lavender, who special-

izes in elder law. In-person appointments are now being
scheduled. Call the COA at 508-430-7550.

LEGAL ASSISTANCE—Remote
Attorney Raymond Yox
Monday January 4

Schedule a free half-hour consultation with Raymond Yox,
Managing Attorney for South Coastal Counties Legal
Services. Raymond’s appointments will be fully remote.
You will schedule your appointment with the COA, and
then at your appointment time, Raymond will call for a
telephonic consultation. Call the COA at 508-430-7550.

NO COST

MOBILE DENTAL CLINIC

Fridays January 22 & February 26

Preventative dental services are available again at the
Community Center! Mobile Dental Hygiene Services of-
fers dental cleanings, exams, fluoride treatments, denture
care, and education. Services are free to anyone with
MassHealth Standard/Medicaid. They offer affordable
rates for individuals without dental insurance.

To schedule an appointment,
contact Mobile Dental Hygiene
Services directly at 508-827-6725 or
smiles@mobiledentalhygiene.com

FOOTCARE CLINIC
“Feet First” - Now with Autumn Knight $45

Wednesdays January 6 & 20, February 3 & 17

After many years of tireless work with the COA, Betty
Brady is retiring. Please join us in sending her gratitude
and best wishes in this transition!

Betty introduced us to trained nurse Autumn Knight who
will be taking over to provide a general assessment of your
feet and will trim, file, clean, and reduce thickening of
nails, smooth corns & calluses, and massage your feet.
Appointments are available 9:00am-3:00pm at the COA for
$45. Please call the COA at 508-430-7550 to schedule your
appointment.

MEDICAL EQUIPMENT LOANS

Durable medical equipment is available for loan to Har-
wich residents (canes, walkers, commodes, shower seats,
wheelchairs, etc.). Loans to non-Harwich residents are
limited to items that we have in abundance.

We “quarantine” all returned equipment for 24 hours
before giving it out to a new recipient and
spray it with disinfecting spray. However,
we are not able to guarantee that it is fully
sanitized.

Call to see if we have the equipment you
need. We will place it outside the building’s
South entrance at a designated time for you to pick up at
your convenience.

Equipment can also be returned to this same location,
without notice, Monday-Friday 1-3pm.

Please only donate or return equipment that is clean and
in good condition. Further, we cannot accept equipment
that requires power or non-durable medical supplies
(bandages, medications, ointments, opened packages of
briefs, etc.) For more info or to request equipment, call
508-430-7550.

UPDATE ON SOCIAL SECURITY APPTS

The Hyannis Social Security office remains closed to the
public, and their staff continues to work remotely. Unfor-
tunately, this means that they cannot currently offer their
Community Social Security Video Service (where you can
video conference with a live person from here at our COA
office). SSA is offering their full range of services by phone.
To speak to the SSA, call 866-467-0440. You can also
access helpful information from their website: ssa.gov.



LUNCH DISTRIBUTION
Monday—Friday, 11am-1pm, NO COST

We are offering a daily lunch distribution to sup-

port seniors who are self-isolating at home. Our talented
chef, Linda St. Pierre, prepares hearty sandwiches and sal-
ads fresh every day, and our friendly volunteers deliver to
your home! To sign up or learn more, call the COA at 508-
430-7550.

Program details:

¢ Schedule: Sandwiches on M, Tu, & Th / Salads on W & F.
Each meal also includes a side and/or dessert.

¢ Unfortunately, we cannot accommodate most dietary
restrictions at this time (call for details).

¢ Eligibility criteria applies—call the COA to discuss.

¢ We have capacity to serve 60 meals per day. At the time
of this printing, you can sign up to receive lunch up to 4
days per week. Talk to Julie to set up a schedule.

UPDATES

Lunch Policy Reminder: Board of Health regulations prevent
us from leaving a meal if you are not home. You must notify
us, preferably at least 24 hours in advance, if you will not be
home at the time of delivery. Our goal is not to waste food
and to respect the time of our chef and drivers. Further, if you
are scheduled to receive a meal but do not answer the door,
the driver’s phone call, or the follow up call from our office, it
is COA protocol to ask the police to do a wellness check. This
is an invaluable service and safety precaution our police offer
in support of our community. We don’t want to abuse their
time by asking for this service unnecessarily.

Therefore, if you are not home to receive your lunch, you
will receive two warnings. The third time you are not home
at the time of delivery, we will have to suspend you from
this service. Please note, we understand that emergencies
happen! If you are not home due to emergency, that will not
be counted against your lunch eligibility.

Delivery Procedures

To protect everyone’s health, all deliveries are now
“contactless.”

¢ COA staff & volunteers are not permitted to
enter anyone’s home, nor the common areas of
congregate housing such as condo buildings.

¢ Delivery drivers will wear a face covering/mask
and apply hand sanitizer between houses.

¢ Driver will set the items down near the door, and
step back at least 6 feet after they knock. Place a
small table or chair outside your door if you do
not want items touching the ground or cannot
bend over. Keep in mind we are not supposed to
hand you things directly!

+ If you wish to speak to the driver, please wear a
mask. Don’t forget to maintain distance.

+ For food deliveries, YOU MUST BE HOME. Board
of Health Regulations prohibit us from leaving
food outside an empty home.

¢ Help us decrease waste! Please call us to
cancel as soon as possible if you will not be
home.

Holiday note—we are not able to provide lunches when the
building is closed. Therefore, there will be no lunch distribu-
tion New Year’s Day (January 1), Martin Luther King Day
(January 18), or Presidents’ Day (February 15).

Don’t forget! Elder Services of Cape Cod & The Islands
offers a Meals on Wheels program. See pg. 10 for details.

————

Winter Weather Policy

If Monomoy Public Schools are closed,

all Harwich COA programs, including

transportation, will be canceled, but the

COA Office will still be staffed and

available to assist you by phone and

email. If the Harwich Town Hall is closed,

the COA will also be closed. We will make every effort to con-
tact people who have signed up for appointments or services
to share closure information. However, in inclement weather,
it is best to call to confirm that the COA is open or to check
the Town website or local news to for building closure
updates.

Please note, to ensure the safety of our riders and drivers,
there may be times the Cranberry Coach van does not
operate due to winter weather conditions, even if other COA
programs are not impacted. Scheduled riders will be
contacted if we have to cancel your ride due to weather.



Councils on A

COASTAL CONNECTIONS

Cape COAST (Councils On Aging Serving Together) has been collaborating to strengthen our partnerships and leverage
our collective resources to offer older adults on Cape Cod enhanced options for virtual programming. Join us as we

connect visually through Zoom, widen our circles and take advantage of greater opportunities for engagement, enrich-
ment, and education. Below is a list of virtual programs open to you in January and February 2021! Each event is host-

ed by a particular Cape COA and is open to residents of all Cape towns—including Harwich! The sponsoring COA and
registration information is included with each event description. Registration for these programs will begin on

Cape COAST

December 30™.

MASTER GARDNER PRESENTATION:
“Continuous Color”

Monday, January 11, 2021 at 1pm (via Zoom)
While we all enjoy the exuberance of the summer garden
there are plants that enhance our gardens throughout the
year. This talk incorporates some basic landscaping
principles and features plants that bring splashes of color
to our gardens throughout the seasons. Some of these will
be familiar favorites and others might bring some new
ideas to your year-round garden. Presented by Cherie
Bryan, current President of the Barnstable County Master
Gardeners program. In becoming a master gardener, she
was delighted to learn that the lessons she learned as a
child following her father in the family garden were backed
up by the science-based approach of the Master
Gardening program. She enjoys continuous learning in the
program. Her current gardening interests are roses, a salad
garden in raised beds, and nurturing the shrubs, trees and
flower beds around her home in Orleans. To register call
the Chatham COA at 508-945-5190.

INSECT EVOLUTION

Wednesday, January 13, 2021 @ 1:30 pm (via Zoom)
We welcome back Larry Dapsis, Cape Cod Cooperative Ex-
tension entomologist, for this fascinating presentation
with plenty of time for Q&A. Insects are the most numer-
ous and diverse group of animals on the planet repre-
senting over 25% of all forms of life. A series of examples
will be highlighted to show structural adaptations for pro-
tection, including changes triggered by human-made con-
ditions like pollution, as well as evolutionary adaptations
to enhance protection from natural enemies. To register
call the Provincetown COA at 508-487-7080.

2 2

Councils On Aging
Serving Together

CHATHAM COA BOOK CLUB-AIl Are Welcome!
“A Piece of the World” by Christina Baker
Kline

Wednesday, January 13, 2021 at 11am (via Zoom)
Come join our newly formed live book club on Zoom, led by
Liz Walker. In our live book club conversations, readers will
come together to connect and discuss thoughts and ideas.
Our first selection is “A Piece of the World” by Christina
Baker Kline. Available in paperback, Kindle and Audible
editions on Amazon and at local CLAMS member libraries.
To register call the Chatham COA at 508-945-5190.

3

CBD IS HERE TO STAY...WHAT YOU NEED TO KNOW
With: Kay Cooney RN, GCNS, APRN

Tuesday, January 19, 2021, at 1pm (via Zoom)

CBD is here to stay and it’s a supplement you might want to
learn more about. Let’s talk about the benefits, how to
safely choose a brand and what CBD can do for you! We
will address uses with pain, anxiety, sleep and more. To
register call the Orleans Senior Center at 508-255-6333.

If you are interested in participating in any of these
COAST remote programs, you must call the sponsoring
COA directly to sign up. Registration is required for all

programs. Contact information is included in the
descriptions.

Join me in thanking our Cape-wide COA partners in
organizing these events and making them so widely
available!




LEGENDS, LORE AND HISTORY OF THE WENTWORTH
BY THE SEA

Tuesday, January 19, 2021, at 1:00 pm (via Zoom)
Join author and historian Roxie Zwicker for a presentation
on one of New Hampshire's most legendary properties, the
Wentworth by the Sea. Step back in time and take a virtual
tour of the property, learn about the robber baron Frank
Jones, and how he created a Victorian hotel in all its
opulent glory. Hear stories about the legendary guests,
parties and goings-on from over 100 years of history.
Review the years when the hotel’s future was in peril and
how it was resurrected with spirits from the past. Roxie
has interviewed members of the Wentworth staff, former
guests and the locals for an assemblage of tales you won't
soon forget. To register call the Sandwich COA at
508-888-4737.

USSR — Russia Myths, Mysteries and Spying
Wednesday, January 20, 2021 at 1pm (via Zoom)

A one-hour plus presentation based on local author Henry
Quinlan’s 30 years’ involvement with the former Soviet
Union and Russia including living in Moscow for five years
during the demise of the USSR and the rise of the new
Russia. This presentation will entertain and educate you!
It starts in 1986 with the Chernobyl incident disaster and
carries through to 2018. Additional topics to be covered
include — The collapse of the Soviet Union, the emerging of
the new Russia, the Summit of 1991, publishing of the book
“Make Way for Ducklings” in Russian, erecting the Make
Way for Ducklings statues in Moscow, the Russian Mafia,
tanks in the street, the FBI and spying, the remarkable
story of Father Ciszek, SJ, the Vatican spy who spent 20
years in prison in Siberia, and secrets of the Soviet Space
agency revealed to Wally Schirra and Henry. He will
present his remarkable videos and photos of the Her-
mitage, Kremlin Museum and the Pushkin Museum and
discuss Putin and the new Russia. To register call the
Sandwich COA at 508-888-4737.

ONLINE SAFETY

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 at 10:30am (via Zoom)
Most American seniors are now online. As
of 2018, nearly 66% of Americans over 65
were Internet users, according to a Pew
Research Center survey. That number is
getting bigger all the time, and for good
reason. The Internet is a great way to
read the latest news, stay in touch with family, get
medical information and manage appointments, renew
prescriptions, and access medical records. It's how many
of us shop and bank without leaving our homes. For an
increasing number of older adults, it's a way to stay in the
workforce and even launch a new career or business.
Learn how to keep yourself safe online! Join Robin
Putnam, Events & Qutreach Manager from the Office of
Consumer Affairs and Business Regulation, for a
presentation on online safety. Learn about the Office and
what they do. Robin will also cover how to be safe online
whether it be on your smart device, social media or online
banking, phishing emails, and general protection from
scams and identity theft. To register call the Chatham
COA at 508-945-5190.

STROKE PREVENTION EDUCATION

Friday, Thursday, January 29, 2021, at 11am (via
Zoom)

Join us for a stroke prevention educational program and
learn about... what a stoke is, recognizing symptoms,
and increasing awareness of risk factors and treatment
options. To register call the Falmouth Senior Center at
508-540-0196.

CLIMATE CHANGE, CLEAN ENERGY & CAPE COD
Tuesday, February 9, 2021, at 1pm (via Zoom)
In this presentation Mon
Cochran, Vice President of the
Cape Cod Climate Change Collab-
orative, will summarize the caus-
es of climate change on Cape
Cod and the primary ways of re- (5
ducing carbon pollution on the
Cape and Islands. He will then describe examples of ma-
jor clean energy projects currently under way in the re-
gion. Mon will also talk specifically about steps the home-
owner can take to reduce the family carbon footprint. He
will be happy to answer questions from participants. To
register call the Orleans Senior Center at 508-255-6333.

6




CRANBERRY COACH {ibafdt) | RIDES TO MEDICAL APPOINTMENTS
ST,

Transportatiory on our _ha”fji' --x.:g_n@ Our ability to provide rides to medical appointments
capped accessible van is still | is extremely limited right now. We will do our best to

available for essential trips to grocery stores and phar- | o..ommodate your request, but ride availability is
macies. To schedule, call 508-430-7550. not guaranteed.

®

¢ Passengers are limited to maintain social distancing: Requests must be made AT LEAST 4 BUSINESS DAYS in

At the time of printing, we are taking two passengers at a advance. The more notice, the better! Call 508-430-7550.

time on the van.
) Guidelines:
¢ You must make a reservation at least one day ahead. The

more notice, the better!

e Travel between Wellfleet and Hyannis only.
e No extra riders are permitted unless required due to
¢ Most trips are scheduled for 9:00 am or 1:00 pm. Your disability (must be your household member).

flexibility is appreciated. e We are unable to provide ongoing rides for medical

¢ Passengers must wear a face covering/mask on the COA therapies (e.g., physical therapy, chemotherapy).

van and be free of COVID-19 symptoms. e Astop to a pharmacy after your medical appt. is

¢ Reminder: rides are to scheduled locations only. allowed; please request at the time of scheduling.

Drivers cannot bring you to any location not scheduled |* NEW:Limit of 2 medical rides per month.

through the COA office in advance. e NEW: We can no longer offer rides for routine dental
Cranberry Coach Weekly Schedule VisTis. ——
Mondays Market Basket and Hyannis shopping

Tuesdays AM—Local shopping COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION

PM—Family Pantry deliveries CCRTA continues to run services on a
_ reduced schedule. Call the numbers m
Wednesdays AM—Local shopping listed for details, ® N

PM—Local shopping

DART
Thursdays AM—Local shopping Low cost public transportation is provided by the CCRTA
PM—Local shopping DART bus, by reservation from curb to curb. You must
Fridays: AM—Local shopping register by calling 1-800-352-7155 weekdays, 8am-5pm.
PM—Local shopping H20

; Fixed route public transportation provided on CCRTA
* = ’
Local shopping = Shaw’s or Stop & Shop. Call the COA for buses hetween Orleans and Hyannis, with stops in Har-

the current schedule. Stops at CVS, the Post Office, and local wich Port and at Shaws in Harwich. Call 1-800-352-7155
banks allowed, only until the Friends’ bus resumes service.

We continue to transport people to onsite COA programs,
Brooks Free Library, and Town Hall.

for information. Exact change needed.

Boston Hospital Transportation
Transportation is provided for medical appointments at

Monday Trip Schedule Boston hospitals daily by the CCRTA. There is a pick-up in
Hyannis shopping: Jan 4, Feb 1 Harwich. Call 1-800-352-7155 to reserve by 11am the day
Market Basket: Jan 11, Jan 25, Feb 8, Feb 22 before. Cost is $30 round trip, $15 one way.
) @
0 Call the COA to schedule ALL rides!
508-430-7550

Please give us as much notice as possible—call at least 24 hours in advance for
Cranberry Coach rides, and at least 4 business days for medical rides.

~\



HriiE

SHARE YOUR STORY—EXTENSION

Thank you to everyone who had submitted content for this project!
It has been an incredible opportunity to read and view your experiences, insights, and reflections. Truly, there is
such joy in our office each time a new submission comes in. In an effort to give more members of our community the
time to submit, we are extending our submission deadline to February 1st!

A COMMUNITY COMPILATION

The COA was recently awarded a grant from Elder Services of
Cape Cod and the Islands for a new project. We are looking to
create and distribute booklets that capture our community’s
experiences living through the COVID-19 pandemic. Harwich
older adults will be both the content creators and recipients
of these hooklets. We will be seeking a wide variety of
content, ranging from journal entries, short stories, poems,
photographs, recipes people have tried or mastered, and
details on new skills and hobbies people have undertaken —
anything that captures individuals’ COVID realities.

We want this project to be as accessible as possible — people
can choose to be as personal or general as they’d like and can
choose from a wide variety of media for their contribution.
We hope to create a space for thoughtful self-reflection and
we envision a final product that captures the high and low
points of this pandemic experience, that shows the strength
and resiliency of our community, inspires hope and creativity,
and shows us all that we are not alone. We won’t shy away
from the hard parts of this experience and will also highlight
new relationships, skills, and opportunities for gratitude.

We would love to receive content from YOU! We will be
collecting content from now through February 1st (submission
details in the next column). We will compile submissions into
a booklet that we will have printed and available for
distribution. We also hope to have a community event on
March 20, 2021 — World Storytelling Day — to celebrate and
distribute these shared stories.

This project is possible only with your participation —call or
email with questions, ideas, feedback, and submissions!

SUBMISSION GUIDELINES

As mentioned in the project description, submissions in a wide
variety of media are encouraged! They may take the form of
journal entries, poems, stories, photos, descriptions of recipes or
hobbies, or anything you feel captures your COVID-19 experience.
The following are general guidelines:

e  Content must fit on one 8.5 x 11 inch page (or be able to
scale to this size without losing quality or legibility).

e Text submissions may be typed or handwritten (and must be
legible).

e  May not include graphic or explicit content — submissions
should be appropriate for a broad general audience and for
distribution in public venues.

e Submissions may be sent by mail (Harwich Council on Aging,
100 Oak Street, Harwich, MA 02645) or by email to
emitchell@town.harwich.ma.us and must be received by
February 1, 2021 (extended deadline)!

e  Submissions should include contact information for the
submitter (full name, mailing address, phone number, and
email address if applicable). This will be for staff follow up
and documentation ONLY and will not be included in the
publication or for public access.

e Please indicate if you want your name included with your
submission in the publication {you may opt to include your
full name, first name only, or to remain anonymous).

e Your submission indicates consent to publish the
submitted materials in the booklet.

e By submitting, you consent to staff edits for size/formatting
only. Staff will not change content.

As a note, the COA may not include all submissions in the final
publication. We will notify everyone who submits content
whether their submission will be printed. Everyone who submits
content, whether it is included in the printed booklet or not, will
automatically receive a copy of the final product.

If you have any questions or ideas, don’t hesitate to get in touch
with Emily at 508-430-7550 or emitchell@town.harwich.ma.us.
We are excited to learn more about your experiences and to build
this project together!




OUTREACH NEWS

NOTES FROM THE OUTREACH OFFICE

Julie Witas, MSW, MPH

Social Services Coordinator

Recently, we've gotten a few reports from
local seniors regarding scams. The methods
used to target victims are becoming 5
increasingly sophisticated and harder to iden-
tify as fraud. Often, the person contacting you will know
information about you that makes their claims sound
legitimate. For example, they might already have some
account information or know the names and addresses of
your family members. Scammers may contact potential
victims by telephone, in person, or on the internet through
email, Facebook, and other messaging sites. They are often
friendly, sympathetic and sound willing to help; they might
even pose as a distant family member or a friend of the
family.

The number one thing to remember to protect yourself is
to never give out any information to anyone who calls you.
Companies and government agencies will not call you to
ask for any account information. If this happens, it’s proba-
bly a scam! Ask what company they are calling from, then
tell them that you will call them back. If they argue, it’s
okay to just hang up. Then, look up the phone number for
that company and call them yourself (if the caller gives you
a phone number, don’t use that one). Remember that you
should only ever give out account information if you have
initiated the phone call.

Common scams targeting seniors:

e Romance scam: Criminals pose as interested romantic
partners on social media or dating websites to
capitalize on their elderly victims’ desire to find
companions.

e Tech support scam: Criminals pose as technology
support representatives and offer to fix non-existent
computer issues. The scammers gain remote access to
victims’ devices and sensitive information.

e Grandparent scam: Criminals pose as a relative—
usually a child or grandchild—claiming to be in
immediate financial need.

e Government impersonation scam: Criminals pose as
government employees (especially IRS or Medicare)
and threaten to arrest or prosecute victims unless they
agree to provide funds or other payments.

Sweepstakes/charity/lottery scam: Criminals claim to
work for legitimate charitable organizations to gain
victims’ trust. Or they claim their targets have won a
foreign lottery or sweepstake, which they can collect
for a “fee.”

Fake refunds from internet purchases: Many
Amazon customers have been recently contacted by
phone from a fake “Amazon representative” to issue
refunds they were not expecting. In some instances
customers were told the refund is a result of fraud on
their Amazon account, and at other times customers
are told they were overcharged for a previous pur-
chase.

Anyone can be a target of fraud, no matter their age.
With careful research and smart decision-making, you
don’t have to be a victim,

e Take time to research whether companies, offers, and
unexpected debts are legitimate. Have a loved one
help you.

o |Ifacaller tells you to act immediately or does not give
you time to research a company, they are probably a
con artist.

s Be wary of unsolicited emails and phone calls from
companies and people.

s If something seems strange about a phone call, simply
say “No, thank you,” and hang up.

¢ Be careful of unusual emails or messages from family
members. If a message contains a lot of typos or
simply doesn’t sound like your loved one, it may be a
hacker.

e Make sure websites are secure before entering pri-
vate information.

e Remember that if something seems too good to be
true, it probably is.

s Take precautions to protect your identity if a criminal
gains access to your device or account. Immediately
contact your financial institutions to place protections
on your accounts, and monitor your accounts and
personal information for suspicious activity.

If you believe you have been contacted by a scammer,
contact your local police department and/or the National
Elder Fraud Hotline at 833-FRAUD-11.



o

HEALTH NEWS

HERE'S TO YOUR HEALTH

Susan Jusell, Town Nurse

“It always seems impossible until it’s
done”

- Nelson Mandela

This is not impossible, we will conquer
this terrible pandemic and get back to the quality of life we
all need and deserve. Like most of you, I'm glad to
welcome 2021!

Try to avoid being overwhelmed by the media hype and
the opinions of those around you regarding when and
whether or not to receive one of the COVID-19 vaccines.
This is a time when we need to connect with our primary
care providers who have our best interests at heart and
who know our medical needs. Through this evolving
situation, ask your nurses and pharmacists for facts and
updates to help best support your decision in care for
yourselves and your families.

There are multiple other companies
worldwide also trying to develop potential

vaccines, all of which will need to go

s ¥ through the proper phases of clinical trials.
The initial search and discovery is typically
followed by animal testing. This then de-
velops into the phases of human clinical trials. The initial
small group of human trials is closely monitored for effec-
tiveness and side effects. The next phases are offered to
larger groups, over longer periods of time, and ultimately
leading to the approval and release of the vaccine if it is
determined to be safe and effective.

As we learned in early December, the FDA confirmed the
safety and efficacy of the Pfizer COVID-19 vaccine. Another
company, Moderna, has progressed into their next phase
of trials in hopes of approval for distribution as well. There
are still some unknowns — for example, we don’t know if
the vaccine or the infection itself produces a stronger im-
mune response; still, many experts argue that the vaccine
is far safer. The Pfizer vaccine will require a second injec-
tion after a couple of weeks - be sure to have that planned

out as you receive your first injection.

Between now and February, Massachusetts hopes to
vaccinate Frontline workers, residents and staff at long
term care and other congregate living communities, and
first responders. By the end of the winter, Massachusetts
hopes to vaccinate adults 65+, individuals with elevated
medical risk factors, schools, essential workers, and other
people in public service jobs. Vaccination of the general
public should begin in the spring.

For information on how best to protect yourself and make
the best decision please rely on information from the
Centers for Disease Control (CDC website: www.cdc.gov/
vaccines/) and by connecting to Barnstable County Public
Health (https://www.barnstablecountyhealth.org/)

We've all made it this far. The days are already getting
longer and every day we're getting closer to management
of this pandemic. Please continue to be safe by keeping
your mask on in the company of those who you do not
live with, especially when you’re indoors.

Try to get yourself outside, or sit in your doorway and get
some fresh air, every day, reflect what you're thankful
for, and please reach out to me if you're feeling
challenged or just want to say hello!

10



n

Last year’s annual Volunteer Recognition Luncheon, scheduled
for March 2020, was unfortunately cancelled due to the COVID-
19 pandemic. At that event, the COA names its Volunteer(s) of
the Year and recognizes their contributions. Since we were
unable to celebrate them as we normally would, we wanted to
take this opportunity to share their works with the community.

VOLUNTEER
SPOTLIGHT

Janice Bernabeo and Judy O’Brien, co-winners of the
Volunteer of the Year award, each contributed over 200 hours
in the Council on Aging office during 2019. They both regularly
seek to do more for the COA and Harwich’s seniors, always
going the extra mile to help and care for the needs of our
community. Their selfless acts of giving are an inspiration to us
all, and we are grateful for their commitment and generosity of
spirit.

This edition, we will highlight Janice Bernabeo’s contributions;
check out the next issue of our newsletter for a spotlight on
Judy O’Brien!

A few years ago, Janice retired after a long career at Russell
Stover Candies and moved to Harwich. A graduate of Simmons
College, she previously volunteered with the Foxboro Senior
Center, driving seniors to their medical appointments. After her
move, she began volunteering for the Harwich COA almost
immediately and quickly became one of our most valued team
members.

Janice gives so much of her time as a volunteer to the COA. Pre-
Covid, she was the welcoming face at our reception desk on
Thursday mornings - always one of our busiest times. She
checked in program participants, collected program fees,
answered phones, and helped prepare for our monthly Men’s
and Women's Breakfasts, all without missing a beat. She was
also a regular driver for our medical rides program; throughout
the year, she drove dozens of Harwich seniors to their doctors
appointments from Wellfleet to Hyannis and everywhere in
between.

When the COA was ready to bring volunteers back into the
office in September, lanice was the first to return. She’s been
working over ten hours every week in our office, again always
eager to cover the busiest times. It's no exaggeration to say
that without her, we could not have managed to accomplish all
we have in the past few months. She makes our office run
smoothly every day she is here, and we have all come to rely on
her trusted judgment and kind support.

| encourage you to make it a point to visit Janice when we are
able to fully reopen—I know she will make your day brighter!

VOLUNTEER NEWS

CURRENT VOLUNTEER NEEDS

Julie Witas

The Harwich Council on Aging is always seeking new
volunteers. If you're looking for a way to safely
connect with others this winter, please consider
joining our team! Email jwitas@town.harwich.ma.us or call our
office at 508-430-7550.

Lunch Drivers (1.5-3 hours/week, short or long term): We are
always looking for additional volunteers to help with our contact-
less lunch deliveries. A great way to meet your neighbors (from a
distance)!

Remote Friendly Visitor (1-4 hours/week, at least 4 month
commitment): We are looking to recruit a team of at least 10
people to make weekly check-in phone calls to seniors who live
alone and are especially isolated during the pandemic. You would
contact the same people each week in order to build a relationship;
we can provide support and suggestions for getting the conversa-
tion started. This can be done from your home or from our office.
Once a month, Julie will facilitate a remote team meeting (via
Zoom/ teleconference) for all volunteers to share feedback and
ideas.

SHINE Counselor (4-8 hours/week, long-term commitment)

As of January 2021, our COA will not have a dedicated SHINE
counselor. Trainings for new SHINE volunteers are currently on
hold due to COVID-19, but we are recruiting now because this role
is difficult to fill.

SHINE is one of the only resources that provide free, objective,
accurate information to Medicare beneficiaries. If you choose to
join, we are sure that you will find SHINE a rewarding, as well as
challenging, volunteer experience.

SHINE Volunteer Functions:

e  Provide information, counseling and assistance in person or on
the phone

e Assist Medicare beneficiaries by completing complex state and
federal forms

e Distribute educational and promotional materials in your
community

e  Educate the community about the program
The Path of being a SHINE Counselor:

To volunteer, the interested person must participate in an 8-10
hour full-day training. During this training you will learn the
essentials of Medicare, MassHealth and other state and federal
programs. In order to become a state certified SHINE counselor you
will be required to successfully complete training and pass a state
certification test composed of 100 questions. SHINE will then ar-
range for mentoring with an experienced counselor, so you are
fully trained before public counseling on Medicare benefits. Note
that all new counselors must be able to use email and have basic
comfortability with using computers.

If you would like more information about becoming a SHINE
volunteer, you can contact our COA at 508-430-7550 or SHINE at
800-243-4636, option 3.

11



CAREGIVER & COMMUNITY RESOURCES

SUPPORT & CONNECTION

The Samaritans on Cape Cod and the Islands:
Senior Outreach Program

Free and available to anyone age 55+
Call 508-548-7999

Senior Outreach is a referral program where outgoing
calls are made to isolated or at-risk older adults. Partici-
pants are matched with a Samaritan-trained volunteer
who calls the senior once or twice each week. Conversa-
tions are confidential, and provide a safe place for older
adults to talk about whatever is troubling them most
without fear of judgment or repercussion.

If you have been impacted by health problems, retire-
ment, the loss of loved ones, depression, or are struggling
with the isolation caused by this pandemic, volunteers are
there to listen with compassion and empathy. Or if you
know of a senior who might be isolated, lonely, or simply
in need of a caring voice, please contact their office to
find out more about how we can match that senior with a

volunteer.
T ——

CALEB CHASE FUND
The Caleb Chase Fund is a Town of Harwich fund designed

to help Harwich residents in financial need. The Fund can

help with payments for rent, utilities (including phone and
internet service), medical hills, car payments, and child
care. If you are interested in learning more about the
Caleb Chase Fund, contact Julie Witas (508-430-7550, or
jwitas@town.harwich.ma.us) to learn more about the
application process.

FUEL ASSISTANCE APPLICATIONS

Our region’s Fuel Assistance Program is administered by
the South Shore Community Action Council (SSCAC). The
program runs November 1st-April 30.

Your application must include:

e Proof of income: e.g., Social Security Award letter; state-
ments for pensions or retirement funds; tax returns

¢ Proof of residence: eg., Mortgage, Homeowners Insur-
ance, Real Estate Tax or lease

e Complete Electric Bill

o Heating Bill

e Photo ID

e Social Security Cards and Birth Dates for all in household

Call the COA at 508-430-7550 for up to date application
information.

NUTRITIONAL SUPPORT PROGRAMS

These programs are ongoing. All deliveries are
now contact-free.

BROWN BAG PROGRAM

The COA works with the Greater Boston Food

Bank and the Family Pantry to distribute brown bags of
food for eligible seniors on the 1st Friday of the month.
Bags may include fresh fruit or vegetables, meat or frozen
food, and shelf stable items. If you have a low income
and/or are on MassHealth, SNAP, or Fuel Assistance you
will qualify. For more information, call 508-430-7550.

MEALS ON WHEELS

Sponsored by Elder Services of Cape Cod and the Islands.
Meals are delivered to homebound seniors by volunteers.
Voluntary donation of $3 per meal. For more infor-
mation, call Elder Services at 508-394-4630.

S.N.A.P.

The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)
helps low income individuals and families buy healthy,
nutritious food. A SNAP household’s monthly benefit
depends on household size, income and expenses. For
more information, contact the COA at 508-430-7550.

S

CAPE ORGANIZATION FOR THE RIGHTS OF THE DISABLED

Did you know that Options Counseling is available through
CORD? Steve Spillane, PhD will answer your calls about
services that may assist you in staying in the community
rather than going into a nursing home. Some of the most
popular programs he shares information regarding include
Personal Care Attendants, Transportation Prescriptions,
and the Home Maodification Loan Program. Please call
CORD at 508-775-8300 x20 and |leave a message for Steve
or email him at steve@cilcapecod.org.

| Call 617-660-5399.

DPH NURSING HOME HOTLINE

Massachusetts Dept. of Public Health has started a newly
dedicated hotline to assist families with questions and
concerns about their loved ones’ care at nursing home
and assisted living facilities during the COVID-19
pandemic. They will also answer questions about the
facility's COVID-19 testing status. The hotline is staffed by
live personnel, Monday—Friday, from 9 a.m.to 5 p.m.

12



TOWN & COMMUNITY

SHINE UPDATES

Can | change my Medicare Plan after Open Enrollment?

Even though Medicare’s Annual Open Enrollment ended on
12/7/2020 you may still have some options:

For those with Medicare Parts A and B (Original Medicare):
You can add a Medicare Supplement (Medigap Plan) at any time
of the year in Massachusetts. If you already have a Massachu-
setts Medigap Plan, you can upgrade, downgrade or end your
coverage at any time during the year. If you missed your initial
period to sign up for Medicare Part A (hospital) and/or Medicare
Part B (medical) now is the time. Then general open enrollment
period for Medicare A and B is January 1 -March 31 with an
effective date of July 1. Call your local Social Security office.

For those with a Medicare Advantage Plan (HMO or PPO):
Between January 1% and March 31st, you can drop or switch
your Medicare Advantage Plan, effectively switching back to
Original Medicare. You will be able to join a Medicare
Prescription Drug Plan (Part D) at this time and you may also add
a Medicare Supplement.

For Prescription Advantage members or if you are getting
“Extra Help” paying for prescription drugs: You can change
your prescription plan during the year outside of the Annual
Open Enroliment.

Five Star Special Enrollment Period (SEP): You can join a 5 star
Medicare Advantage plan once during the year outside of the
annual open enrollment period. The following have 5 star ratings
from Medicare: all Tufts Medicare Advantage HMO plans.

Other Special Enrollment Periods: You might qualify for an
exception that allows you to enroll in a Part C Medicare Ad-
vantage Plan or a Part D Prescription Drug Plan during the year.
Examples may include moving in or out of your plan’s service
area, ending employer insurance, becoming eligible for or losing
MassHealth coverage.

How can SHINE help you? State certified SHINE counselors are
trained regarding the enrollment rules that may apply to your
personal situation and your personal coverage choices. SHINE
counselors are happy to talk with you at any time of the year
and they can analyze your needs and compare available plans to
find you the most comprehensive coverage at the best price for
you. Call the Barnstable County SHINE Office for assistance:
508-375-6762.

/_‘—‘-\_/

AARP Tax Aide Program

This is usually the edition of the newsletter where we share
information about AARP Tax Aide services. At this time, we do
not yet know if this program will be offered in 2021, and if it is,
what format it will take. We will provide updated information on
the Town website as soon as we have more details. Typically,
appointments begin in February—if you have not seen program
details by mid-January, give us a call and we’ll be happy to share
any updates we have with you!

UPDATES

ADDITIONAL TOWN UPDATES

Town buildings and departments remain open to the publicon a
limited basis.

e The COA remains open by appointment only. We are
scheduling 1:1 appointments with staff and for professional
services. We are currently offering legal appointments,
podiatry care, mobile dental hygiene clinic, wellness clinic,
and hearing screenings. We are also scheduling remote
appointments for legal consultations. No contact DME
services are available (see pg. 3 for details).

e The Community Center is open for scheduled groups, 1:1
appointments, and for Weight Room use (reservations
required). For more information, call 508-430-7568.

e  Brooks Free Library has returned to curbside service only.
They will offer this service 6 days per week with morning,
afternoon, and evening pick up times. You must schedule an
appointment to pick up your materials. Library staff are very
happy to help patrons find books or movies they may like
based on their interests. Call 508-430-7562 to talk with a staff
member! You can also search materials on clamsnet.org.

e Town Hall is open by appointment only. Please contact your
department of interest to schedule. For the Town Hall
directory, call 508-430-7513.

e The Cultural Center is open to renters only.

All departments continue to prioritize safety for staff and the pub-
lic. If your needs can be addressed remotely, you are encouraged
to do so. Please call or email us, or any other department you are
seeking services from, to arrange an appointment time if you’re
looking to meet in person.

COA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Council on Aging Board of Directors meets monthly on the
first Wednesday of every month at 10 AM.

At this time, all meetings are held by remote participation only
using GoToMeeting. Meeting credentials/call in information will
be included on the publicly posted meeting agenda. If you would
like to attend any of these meetings and need assistance, please
contact Emily Mitchell (508-430-7550 or
emitchell@town.harwich.ma.us) at least 24 hours before the
meeting and she will guide you through the participation pro-
cess.

Next meetings:

Wednesday, January 6, 2021, 10 AM
Wednesday, February 3, 2021, 10 AM

All agendas will be available on the town website, via the Town
Clerk, or by contacting the COA.

13



Friends of The Harwich Council on Aging

100 Oak Street, Harwich MA 02645
508-432-5050
FriendsofHarwichCOA@gmail.com

A message from Jack Brown, Friends’ President
Dear Friends, Donors, and Members,

As | write this article in early December, | hope our readers had
joyful, safe, and healthy Holidays. Let us also hope the New Year
brings us some relief from Covid-19; and our front line and health
care workers soon receive the awaited vaccination.

Yet we persist:

e  Generous volunteers made lovely Holiday cards that were
included in Chef Linda St. Pierre’s lunches.

e And, volunteers mailed and/or hand-delivered notes of
thanks in November to over 100 Harwich Veterans.

e Qur 2020 fundraising campaign was a success thanks to
generous people like you!

e Friends added to its email address list in an effort to reduce
postage costs and to pass along what we hope is of interest.
Just a note —we do not share your email address.

2021 Plans: Planning for 2021 is underway. The budget is ap-
proved; tentative plans for the minibus to be back on the road in
spring are of course dependent on Covid-19 guidance.

We again expect to support Harwich COA with grocery store gift
cards for food compromised Seniors and to raise funds for the
purchase. And, we are ready to support the COA as well-vetted
emergencies arise amongst Harwich Seniors.

Veterans are also in the plans — our hoped-for breakfast still is in
our plans; if not possible in 2021, we will work with the Veterans
Agent, Shawney Carroll, and the Harwich Fire Association to
develop alternate plans.

2021 Membership: Please renew your membership or join
Friends for the first time. The form below can be used for both
membership or donations.

Friends Board: ,

Jack E. Brown, President, JoAnne Brown, Secretary,
Christina Joyce, Treasurer/Membership, Susan Lellis,
Director, Richard Waystack, Director

GIFT DEDICATIONS NOVEMBER THROUGH DECEMBER
In Loving Memory Of
All Veterans
Seth Hudak, USCGR ret
David MacKay, Brother
Donald MacKay
Rev. Harlow T. Doliber, Husband
Pauline M. Doliber
Ron Pelletier
Peter and Cheryl Sniezek
Ted and Brent Wojnarowski
Carole Wojnarowski
Helen P. Athens
James Athens
Doris Chatterton
David & Pamela Purdy
Peter F. Colleary
Robert & Eleanor Casey
Stan Kokoszka
Pat Kokoszka
In Honor of

Christina Joyce
Shirley Knowles

FY 21 FRIENDS OF HARWICH COA MEMBERSHIP
Annual dues are $5.00 per person / Life dues are $40 per person

Name

Mailing Address

Town/Zip Phone

Email:
ANNUAL: $5.00__
Additional Donation: $

LIFE : $40.00___

Name

Mailing Address

Town/Zip Phone

Email:
ANNUAL: $5.00
Additional Donation: §

LIFE: $40.00__

Please make checks payable to: Friends of the Harwich COA
Mail to: FHCOA, 11 Wheaton Way, Harwich Port, MA 02646

14



Marbled Pumpkin Cheesecake
Active: 30 min. / Total time: 7 hr.

1.5 cups crushed gingersnap cookies
1/2 cup finely chopped pecans

1/3 cup butter, melted

2 (8 oz) pkg. cream cheese

3/4 cup sugar

1 teaspoon vanilla extract

3 eggs

1 cup canned pumpkin puree

3/4 teaspoon cinnamon

1/4 teaspoon nutmeg

Whipped cream and chopped toasted pecans, for garnish

1. Preheat oven to 350°F

2. Stir together crushed cookies, pecans, and butter in a bowl.

Press into bottom and 1 inch up sides of 9-inch springform
pan. Bake 10 minutes.

3. Meanwhile, beat together cream cheese, 1/2 cup sugar,
and the vanilla in a bowl with an electric mixer just until
smooth. Beat in eggs, 1 at a time, blending well after each
addition. Reserve 1 cup of batter, then beat in remaining 1/4
cup of sugar, the pumpkin, cinnamon, and nutmeg into
remaining batter.

4. Spread pumpkin batter into crust. Drop reserved 1 cup
plain batter by spoonfuls onto top. Swirl with a knife to
create a marbled effect.

5. Bake until filling is jiggly only in the center, 45 to 55
minutes. Let cool on a wire rack 15 minutes. Run a knife
around edge to loosen; let cool 1.5 hours more before
removing pan rim. Chill at least 4 hours. Garnish with
whipped cream and pecans.

Recipes selected with love by
our talented Town Chef,

Linda St. Pierre—Dessert
Edition!

Let us know if you try one!

Rustic Autumn Fruit Tart

Active: 20 min. / Total time: 1 hr., 15 min.

1.25 cups flour

1/8 teaspoon plus 1/4 teaspoon salt

3 oz cream cheese, chilled

1/4 cup plus 1 tablespoon butter

3 to 4 tablespoons cold water

1 teaspoon cider vinegar

1/3 cup packed brown sugar

1.5 tablespoon cornstarch

1/2 teaspoon cinnamon

1/4 teaspoon nutmeg

1/4 teaspoon cardamom

2 apples, peeled, cored, and thinly sliced
2 pears, peeled, cored, and thinly sliced
1/4 teaspoon orange zest

1 tablespoon orange juice

1 egg, lightly beaten

2 tablespoon apricot jam, warmed

1. Preheat oven to 375°F. Lightly grease a baking sheet or
line with parchment paper.

2. Stir together flour and 1/8 teaspoon salt in a bowl. Using
a pastry blender or 2 knives, cut in cream cheese and 1/4
cup of butter until pea size. Stir together 3 tablespoons
water and the vinegar in a small bowl; add to flour mixture
and stir just until moistened, adding up to 1 tablespoon
more water if necessary. Gather pastry into a ball, kneading
together gently just until it holds together.

3. Whisk together brown sugar, cornstarch, cinnamon, 1/4
teaspoon salt, the nutmeg, and cardamom in a large bowl.
Add apples, pears, orange zest, and juice; toss to combine.

4, On a lightly floured work surface, roll pastry in a 13 inch
circle. Transfer to prepared baking sheet. Arrange fruit in
pastry, leaving a 2-inch border. Fold border up over the
edge of fruit, pleating gently as needed to hald in juices.
Brush edges of pastry with beaten egg. Cut 1 tablespoon
butter into pieces; scatter onto filling. Tent loosely with foil.

1 5. Bake 15 minutes. Remove foil; bake until crust is browned

and filling is bubbly, 35 to 45 minute more. Immediately

: brush filling with apricot jam. Let cool 30 minutes.

15



HARWICH COUNCIL ON AGING
100 Oak Street
Harwich, MA 02645

2

/ "~ AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

Prst Std
US Postage
PAID
Curley Direct
02601

7N
S ) FOR THOSE WITH VISUAL IMPAIRMENTS, A LARGE PRINT VERSION OF THE NEWSLETTER IS

Harwich Council on Aging
100 Oak Street
Harwich, MA 02645

508-430-7550 (COA)
508-430-7505 (Town Nurse)

OFFICE HOURS:
Monday—Friday 8:30 am—4:00 pm

www.town.harwich.ma.us
click on “Departments” then “Council on Aging”

Staff Contacts
DIreCtOr: .ot Emily Mitchell
TOWN NUTSBiissusmmimmmisivessisen s Susan Jusell
Social Services Coord:....cccvviviiiiininiinneannnns lulie Witas
Program Specialist: ........occoievnniininininininienin Vacant
Executive ASSt: .o eeeeeereriiiiieeeeeeereens Marie Carlson
0 =Y Linda St Pierre

Van Drivers: Gerry Golia, Kathy Skipper, John Chatham

COA BOARD:
Richard Waystack, Chair
Carol Thayer, Vice Chair

Angelina Chilaka
Joanne Lepore
James Mangan
Ralph Smith
Justin White, Alternate

R

The printing of this newsletter was made possible
with grant funding from the Massachusetts
Executive Office of Elder Affairs.

Postage is generously provided
by the Town of Harwich.

COA Disclaimer
The Harwich COA offers many legal, financial, medical,
recreational and other services and/or activities by volun-
teers or nominal cost practitioners. Seniors participating
in these services do so with the understanding that the
Harwich COA, the Town of Harwich or its employees do not
assume any legal or other responsibility for any advice or
services rendered by such volunteers or practitioners.

16



Council on Aging
Proposed FY 22 Budget

The proposed FY 2022 Council on Aging budget is offered consistent with the directive to level
fund relative to the FY 2021 appropriation. The total FY 21 appropriation was $475,401.36. The
requested FY 22 budget is $475,338.14 (reduction of $63.22 or 0.01%).

The mission of the Council on Aging is to support and advocate for older adults, their families,
and caregivers. In ordinary circumstances, this includes transportation, nutrition, outreach,
education, health and wellness, entertainment, and socialization. The department also allocates
significant funding to subsidize the cost for Harwich residents with Alzheimer’s and other forms
of dementia who attend the Orleans Adult Day Health Center. This partnership with the Town of
Orleans provides immeasurable benefit for the residents and invaluable respite for their
caregivers. During the COVID-19 pandemic, services and resources have been reprioritized and
redirected to meet the highest needs. With the onset of the pandemic, the COA overhauled
operations switching from an onsite to community-based model and focusing increased staff and
financial resources in the areas of transportation, nutrition, and outreach.

The particular challenge in crafting the COA FY 22 budget request was to balance the competing
priorities of ordinary vs. pandemic operations. The difference in COA operations under these
varying circumstances is not merely a matter of scale or method of service delivery, but gets to
the specific types of services offered.

Under COVID operations, we have dramatically expanded our lunch, grocery/pharmacy support,
and transportation programs. Our lunch program, which transitioned from onsite to community
delivered meals, has tripled in size. Currently, we are serving 60-70 meals per day and serving
85 unique individuals each week. We have implemented dedicated grocery/pharmacy support
beyond transporting people to grocery stores to include COA staff and volunteers picking up and
delivering groceries to people at home. Our transportation, while operating at a reduced ridership
capacity, has expanded to include many new locations including pharmacies, banks, the Post
Office, and essential medical appointments. Outreach services, while modified to eliminate in-
home services, have expanded in response to increased health and financial needs and in light of
limited access to other community resources. The proposed budget seeks to balance the cost of
COVID services while planning for the eventual resumption of ordinary operations.

The primary cost increases from FY 21 to FY 22 are as follows:

e Costs associated with proposed COA staffing reorganization to upgrade Program
Specialist I (HEA Grade 4) position to a Program Specialist II (HEA Grade 8) —
increase: $9,864.19. The proposed upgrade would provide greater departmental
efficiency and significantly increase our programming capacity, utilization and training
of volunteers, and our ability to publicize available services and resources without
increasing staff hours.

e Negotiated step and longevity increases in salaries and wages - increase: $2,887.09



e Postage — Increase to reflect fact that COA will have to pay standard (rather than non-
profit) postage rate for bimonthly newsletter. Prior to FY 21, COA have paid and
budgeted for non-profit rate. During procurement process for FY 21 newsletter printing
contract, learned that we had been paying that rate in error — increase: $2,400.

e Dues —FY 21 provided a one-time reduction in dues costs with MCOA (Massachusetts
Councils on Aging) waiving dues in light of COVID impact on COA budgets. Will
resume full dues payment for FY 22 — Increase: $1,110

e Training and professional development — nominal increase to account for ServSafe
certification for Town Chef, per diem Town Chef, and Director (must renew every three
years) — increase: $450

e Purchased Services — increase to resume funding to vendors for program/event payments
in anticipation of resuming onsite services or investing in quality remote programming —
increase: $400

e Food/Food Services — we continue to fund food/food services costs at the higher FY 21
level in recognition of the greatly expanded lunch program adopted during COVID.
Nominal increase of $200.

The primary cost decreases from FY 21 to FY 22 are as follows:

o Salary difference between former and current Social Services Coordinator — savings:
$7,691.95

e FEliminate supplemental 5 hours/week van driver coverage approved in FY 21 to address
COVID transportation needs — savings: $6,196.94

e Filling van driver vacancy at lower than FY 21 budgeted step (FY 21 — budget at Step 6,
FY 22 — new hire paid at Step 3->4) — savings: $1,159.13

e Copier Maintenance and Service — five year copier lease expires at end of FY 21.
Purchase new copier rather than utilizing leasing model. Purchase using grant (Executive
Office of Elder Affairs Formula Grant) funds, keep annual service agreement in budget —
savings: $1,436

Further, a number of cuts were made during the FY 21 budget process in recognition of the
shift is costs/priorities with the onset of COVID. I propose to maintain these cuts for FY 22
to continue to offset other departmental needs. I anticipate needing to resume full pre-
COVID funding in these areas once we return to ordinary onsite operations:

o Professional/Tech Services (this line item is utilized solely to fund the subsidy for
Harwich residents to attend the Orleans Adult Day Health Center — Decrease from FY 20
to FY 21: $5,000). The line item is amongst the most impacted by uncertainty
surrounding the resumption of ordinary post-COVID operations. The Orleans Adult Day
Health Center is currently closed with an anticipated limited reopening this winter., Able
to reduce funding by half in light of closures, but this service is heavily utilized when
available and will need significantly higher funding in the future.

e Advertising (Decrease from FY 20 to FY 21: $1,600)

e Computer Networking (Decrease from FY 20 to FY 21: $600)



e Printing (Decrease from FY 20 to FY 21: $§500)
e In state travel (Decrease from FY 20 to FY 21: $420)

The proposed budget offers difficult trade offs intended to fund services that meet the most
essential community needs under a variety of circumstances while complying with the directive
to level fund. The impacts of reductions and offsets will be felt, particularly as we return towards
greater levels of pre-COVID operations with few funds available to provide programming,
recruit vendors or performers, or to advertise programs and services. The biggest impact may
well result from the reduced funding available to subside residents looking to attend the Orleans
Day program, as this resource provides an unparalleled support for both residents and caregivers.
We will continue to evaluate funding priorities as pandemic and societal factors evolve in the
coming funds to best allocate limited resources. The budget as presented reflects the best and
most efficient efforts to serve our mission based on current information.



vZ/8 83eq ATUUY
84°LTE B sSaANOY T9ST + 65°9Z$ 1B SINCY 997
(Z-8¥HdH O3 T-8YHH) Sanoy LZ8T
(IZ A4 Uut noﬂuﬂmom STyl 03 psjowoxd)
ZSTLEF'0S ZSTLET'0S 00°T LO'SBITM - HOLUYNIQY00D SHDIAMES TIVIDOS
I1/L 23ep ATUUY
(X¥W 9-L¥HH) 8% LE€$ X 3mMm/SIY GEg) SINOY LZ8T
96 €IS’ LS 96" €15 LS 00°T "W ‘ucsTaed -INYISISSY HAILNDAXH
0E€/0T @3BP ~ATUUY
9LL9 6ES B SANOY 8ICZT + OTIL 8E$ 1B SINOY 609
(9-2ZW O3 G-ZW) TE'206'TLS = Axeles

CETOE TL ZE"Z06'TL 00°T ‘E TTPUDITW YOO ¥OIDIIIA
-006TTS-T-0-000-000-0000-T%S-5-00T0
€9° ST 0% ’'8ce 00°T198'T0C 89°9¢€£’'9¢C¢ SHOYM ® SHATYVIVS 006TTS TTIFSTIO

(sanoy Aepuol YiTsM PaUTUOD

3I9m sInoy AepsaupspM Syl 0S8 PUB 0Z A4 PUB 6T

Ad yaoq xol uoTjexedsad 218bpng TeIITUT 3yl butanp
Jueoea sem uoTiTsod syl ~IDATIP URA - SAPPSaUDPSM
- 3oom xod Aep suo =yjl sjussaidsax uotitsod

STyU3l) saesh [eosTI 3sed UT SINOY ISATIP UBA
(sAepuop - s@am zad Aep ouo) s,xaddrys Auyley yatm
PSpPNIOUT ussg PBY SINOY - Wa3T MU ® ATTESI 10N«
¥-1I¥dH <- €£-TY¥=EH

(zs
"IZS X SIY 96T + 65°0Z% X SIY §6T) Sanoy [e3I01 I6€
L6 ZET'8 L6 ZEZ'8 00> T Lo ‘weyley) - ¥YEAIEA NYA

(XYW 9-T¥HH) 0G°€g$ X sanoy 0ST

(Fayp xeInbsx zoI

SWI1 OIS % DBA ISA0D O3) D ’'BddDeIISd

00°G62S'€E 00°525°¢€ 00T ® "D ‘aaysn - SdNS AHHD WHIA dHd
(X¥IW 9-TI¥HH) 0SS £2% X sanoy QQT

(sxsATIp IETNBBI I0J 2WT] OIS B OBA

00-0sg’z 00'o0se’e 00°T SI2A0D) HOVIHAOD ¥AATAA NYA WHIQ ¥dd
‘payIom/paTnpayos
SINOY Tenioe 103TJ2I 03 SISATIP Om1 33Ul us2mliaq
1TTde Buleag MmOU SIF SINOH " ISATIP Aepsaupsm
2yl Io3 sanoy pepniaut ATsnotasid SUTT STULx
TZz/8 23eq "ATUUY
(xew 9-TYHH) 05°'€g¢$ X (ATuo sAepuop
SSATIP - a[gqetiea ’'osm/siy . xoxdde) sanoy ze¢

00°21Z'6 00°21Z2’6 00°T M ‘zaddrys - ¥HATYA NWA
TT/L :23eg ATUUY
(9-TY¥HH) 0S5 €Z$ X (Mm/sIy 0Z) SaY $H0T

00" FES'¥E 00 ¥%ES'¥%E 00°T "D 'BTIOD - YHAIYA NVA
(XVIW 9-TTVEH) LZ 8E€S X SInoy Qg

"9sInu "bsx Jo swTl DTS

3 "doBA butanp syse] [ETIUISSI I3A0D O3

‘D ‘IepAY
09°T90'€ 09°T90'¢€ 00°T ® A 'UOTTRA - SHNS HSUNAN WIIA dAd
-008TTIS-T-0-000-000-0000-TFS-S-00TO
Z8°6- LS ST6'0G €5 10Z'€9 1 8S%'95 MBS ANNOY-AYHAA HWIL-INYd DOBTTS TI¥STIO
HADNYHD I5anday TYNLOY LADang 0av
INIEDIAd AaELoHELodd LNAJIIND NOILATYDSHA INNODDY LO¥d LDHCLHO DY¥0
SIIDANT DNIILVIHEAJO 220 A4 TZZ0Z NOIIDILO¥d LIpandgd
bxadespbg S1SHEN0HY I1IDANE INIAWINYIHA TI®Yo3TWS

T d YILVd dATT - HOIMAVYH 40 NMOL
uonnjos dia Jajk) e ° = e 3 T =y E - - . 2

snuw %',

0202/60/2T




00~

00"

£6°C

00"

0070s¢
00°0S€
00 0s¢t

00°0§¢€
00°0s¢t
00°05¢
00°0S€E
00°0S%'Z

00"

L9 0G6'S

0T €82'T

SS°0T0'¥
zE FFTIT

00"

6E°LLE'0T

957 9¢££ 'S8

0S°"¥E6'C¥

00°0S¢
00°'0s¢
00" 0S¢

00°0S¢
00°0S¢E
00°0s¢E
00°0S¢g
00°sLZ'Z

00-

L970596'S

0T €82'T

SS°0T0 ¥
857266 'TT

00°

6€-LLT’'0T

95°9€££'498

0s " ¥ve6'C¥

00°T SOANOY" M2IS II ILSITVIDAAS WYID0dd
00°T SNNOH MDIS HAIV WY¥D0dd/ATHD
00°T SNNOY MOIS ¥YHATHA NYA dN0H 02
SANOY
00°T MOIS HSUNN HITVHEH DITdNd /N¥ NMOL
00°T SNNOd YMIIS ¥OLYNITJYOOD SHDIAYHES TVIDOS
00°T SANOY YMDIS INVISISSY HAILNDIXHA
00°T ) SONCH YMOIS ¥OLOHEIA
-LOOSTS-T-0-000-000-0000-T%S-S-00T0
00°0S%'¢ LOVELNOD ¥3d SANOH HAVHAT MDIS LODSTIS TT¥STO

-5005TS-T-0-000-000-0000-T%¥5-5-00T0
00~ ADVE-ANd IAVAT MADIS S00STS TI¥®STO

(LD xZSx0FxLB 0FS)
AjTasbuo g4
00°T 'S ‘TTesnp - HSUAN NMOL
(€0 %ZS%SExDS " ETS)
AjtasbuoT 3¢
=T
GO '8I1I8Td 3§ - SWYIDONd 0L HAIY/JFHD NMOL
(LO %ZSxSEx8F " TES)
A3TASbUOT 3/
00°T "W 'UOSTABRD INVISISSY FAILODHAXE
-000FTS-T-0-000-000-0000-T%¥5-S-00T0
95 %26 °'0T ALIAHONOT 000%TS TI®STO

-000€TS-T-0-000-000-0000-T%5-5-00T0
00" JNILIIAO 000ETS TTI¥STIO

(?-8YHH) TE£°0€$ 3B SINOY PIpuUNI-uMol 699
"gZ R4 107 % deoas o3 dn pspunjy aI0IaIsayl
't pue T sdoisg ussmisq Iz Ad butranp uoratsed
II o=ads boxg x03 21Ty 01 posodoad ‘pasoxdde JT
(SATBIIY ISPTH JO SDOTIJO DATINOSXH
YW Y3 WOIJ PIBME JUERIH BTNWIOCH [enuue) buTpung
juexn pue umol 3ATTds “dgam/sanoy g ‘swTtl TINng
(8 2peID YHH) II 3sTTero=dg wexboxg
<- (¥ ®peIn ¥EH) I 3IsTTeTo=ads weiboid
00°'T uotTiezIuebrosy vop pasodoiag
?I/1IT @3eQ ATUUY
(*oeds XYW 9 - TTH) L8 0%FS X (MM/0F) SIY 880C
00°T S ‘TTe@snp - =HS¥AN NMOL
1/L 23 ATUUY
(XYW 9-TVHH) 0S5 €T$ X (MM/GE) SIY LZBT
00°T T ‘SIIST4d 35S - dAIY WYYD0dd/AHHD

bxjydspbqg
z

d

uannjos dia Jajky e

IDNVYHD
LINIDYHA

1sanday

IVNIOY
qaLOEL0dd

IIpdng £av
LNIAYAND NOILAI¥DSAEA INAODDY [O¥d LDILd0 [31- (0]

S1EDANT DNILVIHEdO ZZ0¢ Ad TZZ0Z NOILDIACO¥d IIADANH

SISENDAY IADANd INAWIIVAEA TI®Yo3TWa
YIVd HAIT - HOIMNYHE 40 NMOL TT:LT 020Z/60/2T1




‘YOO Aq ATIng pepunj 3Ing sIiTeIIV

s, ueIalap pue Axsjswe) A poaxeys I9TdOD 930N«
1502 juswasibe

@0TAx®s Tenuue paledioTjue sjussaxdsI 005'ZS STUL
‘spunj (JueID BTNWIO] TRNUUE

SITeJIV I8p[d JO 20TJI0 SATINDSXEH) Jueab Bursn
(000'%s xoxdde :3so02) oseyoand TTIM "ZZ X4 Y3ITs
butuutbsq ssesT ueyl zsyjex sseysind 03 pusiul
"IZ Ad Jo pus 23® saxTdxs ssesT IaTdod IB3A S YOO

00°005°'2 00°005’€ 00°T HOIAYHS 3 LNIVW S¥EIJ0D
-L00%Z5-2-0-000-000-0000-T¥5-S-00T0
8% 9¢E- 0070052 00° 00°9€6'€E HOIAY¥ES B HONVYNIINIVW SHHId0D L00O¥ES <CI¥SIO
saanysoxq proi/autid o3 3so0d
P2I3eUTWIT® Y2Tym UOTIONPaI 38bpng 1z Ad UTRIUTER
00°059¢- 00°' 0S¢ 00°T uotionpay l1=bpng
uotTionpsi 1Z Ad IO
1zed se polRUTWITSx - 0SES S2aInUdoIq PIOIF/IUTIg
0STS spaed sng ystusaTday
YOO IoJ butjutag -oSTH
007009 00 00S 00°T DONIILNIYd
-T¥2<25-2-0-000-000-0000-T%S-S-00T0
00~ 00°0ST 00" 00°0ST uotionpoidsy ¥ burjutag T¥cECs CTIPSTO
sIealk
¢ Azoae paxtnbel - QGF$ - I0308ITQ puE ‘JOUYD WITP
aad ‘JayD UMOL I0J UCTILDTITILISD 3JEBSAIDS :MONx
00t
- S3UT[08p 2aTITUbCD Burtztubooax _mmﬂonwmnme
03 butpuodsal :3I SIOTUSS YITM SUOTe butaq
STTEPIUD IOM 9SOUM STOA I0J BUTUTEBI] TOA T,PPV-
00gs - butbe :91 BUTUTEI] SOTAIDS-UT IDIJUNTOA-
00€S - JJe]s I0J sbuTiL[w/BUTUTeI] "DSTKH-
000T$ - bButurexl AboTouyosl/xsindwod JIeis-
0GL$ - UOTIABIASTIDaI -~ JUOD WODM-
00€$
- sonssT Butbe a1 BuTrurell 20TAISS-UT JIRIAS-
00T$ - FIels ISATIQ-UOU IOF (IY IST 3 ¥dD UUY-
08% - SIPATIQ IOJ SPTVY IST T¥ ¥dD 'uue paitnbay-
00°08S ‘€ 00°085°¢€ 00°T INZWGOTEAZA " JA0¥d/ONINIVIL
-0E06TS-2-0-000-000-0000-TFS-5-00T0
8E°¥T 00°085'¢€ 00" 00°0DET ‘€ INHWAOTIAHA ~JA0dd/ONINIVIL 0€06TS ZEIWSTO
-006LTS5-2-0-000-000-0000-TF¥5-5-00TO
00~ 00" 00~ 00° SLIAENTIY HDNI¥A JdHHLO 006LTS CTIPSTO
-0009TS-T-0-000-000-0000-TF¥S-S-00TO
00" 00~ 00~ 00~ SHOIAYES 40 LNHWHONVHNE 0009TS TI®#STO
HONVHD LsEnday IYNIOY IEsand r£av
LNADEHd qdLodarodd LNHIEND NOILAI¥DSHA LNAODDY [0¥d LOHALHO 240
SLIDANYT DNILVYAIdO 2202 ARd TZZ20Z NOILOACrOYd I1dDANT
bajdspbq S1sANDAY LIHANT INAWIAYAAA 119YD3TWe
€ d z0z/60/21

uoinios dia iajkp e

VIVA HAIT - HDIMIVH 40 NMOL TT:LT O




00~

00~

00~

00~

00°'000°T-

go-ope’‘e
00°00€"'T

00°00%'S
00°00%’'S

00°

00°009-

00'009°'2
00°000'2

03 TedIATID "Iesh/swerboad % 031 Iead/sweaboxd
6 woxl bursTtiasape asdedsmau uT uUoTIONPaY
$AD8JIe - uoTIOoNPSI TZ A4 UTBRIUTBW - ZZ Ad

00°000'T 00°T uotTionpay 3i=bpng
(6%002%)
008'T$- SIiUsAd/sueIboild Io0J DBursTilIsape DSIK
(zxpsegs) 00S% - sburasod qor asdedsmen

00°00£°'2 00°T ONISILYIAQY

-00T¥€S-€-0-000-000-0000-T%5-5-00T0
007008 00 00E’T DNISILIIAQY 00T%ES ZIPSTO

TSUBSTIO PUR UDTMIBH JO SUMOJ UMIJ
Juswesiby Tedrotunuisjul Aq psuixsaob st Aprsqns
TS3TUN g% - 6T0E/0T 'S3TuUn €€ - 8T0Z/0T
(9DULIBIVI 104 ~IBBA/SITUn I0W (QF I0I MOTTE
Io3 oseaxoutr psscdoxad "IesA 1seT a2yl url weiboxd
Aep sSuUeLTI0 1B SIULPISSI YDTMIBH AQ 2DuUBpuUI]E
Ut 2SeaIdul Ape21s U99S SARY SM “YIUOUW/SDTAISS
Jo satun $y ‘xoxdde I0J SMOTTE UCTIRINOTED 0Z Ad
UOTIBINOT®D 0Z A4 - (0E$ g5 X MM/s3tun QOT)
“Pem/s3TUn 0Z ATe3ewixoxidde Jo souepuajje
TeEnaoe pejdariax Jeyl uotiexado qraoDd-ad
butanp speuw isenbsx Tg X4 TETITUT IDA0 UOTIONPaI
205 ® ST Junowe gz A4 poassnbsy -yesm aad sjytun
1T Ar=3ewtxoxdde I2A0D pInom Junowe paisanbay
"IUTOOBA JIAQOD IO UOTINGIIISTIP BUTMOTTOI sunsal
03 pe@ledroTiuy "dIAQD butinp pspuadsns wexboig
* (uosaad
T X037 9ouepusije JOo Ap T = 3TUN) 3ATUN/0ZS
JO 3802 ' SJUSPISSI UDTIMIBH IO SDOUBPUIIE
SSZTSQns YUDTMIBH JO UMOJ, - SURSTIQ IO UMOJ
243 YyaTm Jusweeibe TedIoTunuisjul Aq pauILson
‘wexboxd Is3us) Aeg SURSTIQ PUSJIE 0} SIOTUSS
UoTImIBH oTgeus 03 A3Tsqns =21e) Arg 2at1ixoddng
00°00% 'S 00°T IDOIANAS HOEL/T¥YNOISSHAOEd
-0060£5-¢-0-000-000-0000-T¥S-5-00T0O
00°885 '€ 00°00%’S HDOIA¥HES HOHL/TYNOISSHAOCHd 0060ES TTI¥STO

-00Z2%€9-2-0-000-000-0000-T%S-S-00T0
00°0LE°€ 00° ¥IVdEY INHWdINOE dDIdJd0 0oeZw¥ecs <CI¥PSTO

putwmerboxd sjtsuc jo uotjdunssx aTeos TINI TTIUN
UOTIONPSI UTRAUTEBW - SUOTILRIS UT ubIls I3jus)
IOTUSS AW TPUCTITPPE I0J 1ISOD PSACWSI TZ Ad

007009 00°'T uoTionpay I9bpng
(suctje3s
2dTMs " TIppe Z JI0J 009¢% + WDISAS UTeW IOJ 000Z%)
wa3sAs Jwbw aseqgejep
pa@seq-gem I2jUua) IOTUaS AW JO 1S0D HIOMIDU " UUY

0070092 00°T putyromisN ta3anduod

-0T0¥€S-€-0-000-000-0000-T¥%¥5-S-00T0
00° 00°"000°€ aTnsuc) 3 butryromisn asindwod 0T0%¥ZS CI¥PSTO

bxadepbqg
i4 d

uonnos dia 1915 e

siunw

HDNVHD
LNHDYHJA

ILsand=Ey

TVOLOY 1apang oav
aaroaroyd LNEIEND NOILAI¥DSHA INNODDY [ro¥dd LDALdO [32-1¢]

SLEDANE DNILVIHEdO 220 Ad TZZ0Z NOILOHLOdd 1IADANd

SLSANOIY 13HaANd INIWINVIIA TIoYo3TWws
YIYAd HAIT - HOIMYVH 40 NMOL TIT:LT 0Z0Z/60/21




00~

00°s<

00"

26 SL

00-

00°00%°‘Z
00°00%‘2

0o"o00'€
00°000’'€
00"

00°9L6°C
00°9L6'2

00°025°S

00°02S'S

00~

(-sow zT X 00Z%) "239 ‘susd ‘sarrddns BUTTTT
‘sTeqeT ‘zsuol ‘zsded Toutr o3 satrrddns 20TJJO OSTW
*TTejap aiouw
00" 00%’'2 00°T I03 moTaq =sos - saT1Tddns =20TII0 WOD
-000€%5-2-0-000-000-0000-T%S-S-0010
oo-o0o00’'T 00°00% '€ SHITdNS d2IA4A0 0002¥%S EZTIFPSTO

(swexboxd
mau 7 Jo uoratppe) butuwexboxd qnip axsddng-uou
I9Y30 punj 03 SSeaIDUT TTBWS - (8X00ZS) 0091
- swexboxd Terosds I0J SIopusy 3 JUSUUTERIISIUY
00%s - sTeoTsAud juswArdws - 21g
‘S9SEeaIdUT
39bpng IsYlo 19SIJO 031 SIND SWOS UTRIUTRN ‘' SINoy
ssaursng butinp butwwerboxd xsyjo o3 spunj swos
931e20TT®sI 'dIACD-380d "dIAOD buTinp pajeutwiTs
- (EZIX0GT%) 008°'T$ - 3uswutrejasjug qnrp I=addng
oo-o00'g 00°T SHOIAYHES dEHSYHO¥Nd
-0008£S5-2-0-000-000-0000-T%¥5-5-00T0
0£°025’'8¢ 00°009'T SHOIAYHS JISYHDHUNd d¥HHILO 0008ES ZI¥STO

00" 00" Juswisnlpy 3sbpng
UCTIBJUSUNDOP/HIoM PTSTI I0I IOJRUIPIOOD
S8DTAIBS TEBIDLOS PUBR 2SINN UMOL I0J SpedT Z ANV
JI0308ITJ pUR 'ICJRUTPIOO] SIDTAISS
TBTIDOS ‘I9ATIJ UBA ‘9siny umol IoJ ssucyd TT19D ¥
00°9L6°C 00°T ejlepsral/suoydsTal
-00%%£S5-C-0-000-000-0000-T%¥5-5-00T0
00-08€'T 00°9L6’T SHOIAYHAS VIVJATHL ¥ INOHdATHL 00%%ES CZI¥®STO
(2x09%)
0ZT$ - sburTrew -Toa Terosds 103 sdwe3ls "OSTW
‘putiutad 9332 TsSMaU
a07 prted o9 asnw 3yl a3ex =beisod peoijrosaad
piepueids 2yl sS3paTiax 3sanbex gz x4 - obeascod
3tgoxd-uou I0J aTqThTT2 J0u umol -273ex =abeisod
3tzoad-uou pred ATsnorasid - junowe pajisbpng Tz
Ad I9A0 ssesiadur =2beisod JuesTITUbTS - (9 X 006)
00¥%SS I®j3eTsmau ATyjucw -Igq Io0J sbeisogd
00°025°’S 00°T HOVILS0d
-00€%€£5-2-0-000-000-0000-TFS-5-00T0
00" 00021 '€ HOVISOd 00gE¥ESs EZTPSTO

-00€%€5-¢-0-000-000-0000-T%S-S-00TO
00" 00~ HOIAYAS AY¥HIAITHA 00ZveEs <CIPSTIO

"joeduT gIAQD Burmollo pue butanp swexboxd
93TSUO/®30WBI PTIGAY DU S3]0WSI SPIBMOT] SSAOW
YOO se suweiboad $ 1sesT 1e I0J Burtpuny urealsx

bxaydspbq
S

d

uInjos dia gk e

JDNVYHD
INEDIHd

Lsanday

TYNLOY LIDANg rav

qaLoErodd LNEIIND NOILAI¥DSHEA INNODDY rOdd LDELHO [32-10]

SIEDANT DNIILVIHHEJO 2202 Ad TZZ0Z NOIIDALOodd ILIDANd
S1SEN0HY 1I3DANT INAWILIVAEA TIsy23TW™
YILVQ FAIT - HOIMIVH A0 NMOL TT:LT 020Z/60/2T




00°

00"

00"

S¥-

00~

00~

0o0"08Z'€
00°098'T

00°0S%°T
00'0S¥'T

007008
00009

00" 0LT'¥%
00" QLT'¥¥

00°STS'¥
00°STIS'¥

007008
007009

oo-08Z’'e
00°-

00°0S%‘T
00°009'T

007009
00"

00°0LT %%
00-

00°65TS'¥
€6 °TT6'S

0070095

00

00gs - 2218

butuTeil pus3je o3 JJeIS YOO OSTW I0J QUTISI ABRIL

08%$ - SI3ITSTIA

swoy ® sbiw pua3je 03 I03DSATP IO qUTSI ABRIL

006$ -

SATSTA WOy .uU.DﬁEUU 03 9saInN umog, Io0J quTsI ABIL

009% - sburjssw pusije pur SITSTIA

JWOY 1DNPUOD 03 PIOOD AI3S D0 I0I qUTaI TaARILI

00°T THAVEL HIV.LS NI

-000TLS-Z-0-000-000-0000-T%S5-S-00T0
TeABIL 23B35-UI 000TLS

00gs - sTetIajew ananossx butuueTd wexboxd -osSTR

00€$ - 3T Aousbioswyg uea

00€3 - Swiol SITT JO aTTd

0SE$ - SWIOJ SaYUSTM SATH

0058 - sseaupaiedsaxd Aousbsws x03J sbeq "H°'d v D

00°T SHITddNS dEIAISSYTIONN

-000855-2-0-000-000-0000-T%#S5-5-00T0
SHITddNS dEIAISSYIONN 0008585

00°098'T

00°0S¥%°T

00§$ - '©398 ‘sdrtaas 3593 ‘sor1ddns pre 3IsITI
‘gadtm ToyooTe ‘ssaolb Toutr satrddns Nu COSTW
00" T SH3IddNS dHDIAA0 SHSENN
-0%0055-2-0-000-000-0000-T%#S-5-00T0
00" 009 ATddNsS HOIAA0 SHSANN 0¥005S

" (zz A4 ur weaboxd sTYl IOJF
Butpuny wvWH4 Jo AjTtrTgRrTRAR pojedroTraiue Jo 0ET
03 8np ST 25eaI09p) Arp/sSTesw Py ATelewixoxdde
I0J MOTTE PInNom T2A® STY1 1 Burpund
‘wexboxd Tesw IoTUSS 2yl ICT JUSWSSINWTDI WWHA
jo potaad e BUTMOTTOI Aep/sTeaw Qg IOI poapuni
- wexboxd uoTINQTIASTP YauNT - AIA0D buting
¥$ :Te=2w x2d 3soo ajewtxoxddy
wexboxd TeaW YOO
00°T SHITddNS HDIA¥MHS dO0d ® dood
-0006%5-2-0-000-000-0000-T¥S-5S-00T0
00 0LE'EF SHITAANS HDIAYHES dO04 ¥ 4004 0006F%S
TSUOCTIONIISUT
1sbpng xad Tz X4 ©3 SATIR[2X pung [saAa]
wexboxd uoriejlrodsuexl yoseod AxxsqueId IoJ Tond
00°'T THENA AT10d
-00TI8%5-2-0-000-000-0000-T%#S5-S-00T10
00°STIS’'¥% TaNA ATNd 00T8%S
("P39 ‘sasurgeo BUTTTI ‘SaTeRYD
"Bre) pepssu se jusuwdinbe 20TIIc soerdsa/eseysing
00°T LNEWNdINOE dDIA40
-001€%¥5-2-0-000-000-0000-T%S-S-00T0

007008 INEWdIN0E H2Id440 00TEFS

CL¥ST0

CI¥STO

CI?STO

ZI¥PSI0

ZI¥STO

ZT¥STO

bxaydspbq

uonnjos dja Jajh} e

EDNVHD
LNIDYHA

Lsanday

TYALOY
qaLodarodd

Lapdndg rav
LNEIEND NOILAI¥OSHO INAODDY r[O¥d LDIALHO
SIEDANd DNILVIEAJO ZZ0T Xd TEZZ0Z NOILDALOdd &L

SISHEN0HY I1IOHAND ILNIAWIUVYAHQ

YIVA FAIT - HOIMIVYH J0 NMOL TT:LT O

™0
Foang

TI®Y23TWs
z0Z/60/2CT

e e - - — R =S




00~

00"

00

00~

00°

00~

00~

00"

T ¥#5¢C

00"

00"

00"

00"

00’

00~

00~

00°0SEZ’'€E8
00°0sz’e8

00-

00"

00°S0S'T

00°50S'T

00°

00" 0E%-

00~

00-

00"

00°

00

00-

00°0SZ ‘€8
00°0€0 8L

00°000°T

00~

00°S0S’'T

00

¥ooLL'E

00 0c¥y

-90L0€5-2-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00~ LNHWNdOTHEAHIA dTIIHD 2O 90L0€ES

-50L0ES-Z2-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" SHOIAYES SSOT IHDIS S0LOES

-$0L0ES-Z2-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" QTONSOD ¥0LOES

-€0L0€ES-2-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00~ SHILITIEY dd¥D €0L0€ES

-¢0L0€S5-2-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00~ HSNOH HONHUNAdHANT zoLoes

-10L0€S-C-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00° dT0D HHL WO¥d NI NOILVIEdO T0L0ES

%7 JO 9SBaIDUT 3ISIPOW

SO T 18TXg spesN weiboxg
-00L0ES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-S-00T0

00°0Sz’'€8 SHOIAYHS NYNWNH 00LOES

-0008LS-2-0-000-000-0000-T%¥S-5-00T0
00" QHIAISSYIONN 0008LS

"ZZ Ad I0J 380D senp (00T
‘1$ TINn3 Jo uoTaexolsax =23edroTiue ATIngd " butby
uo sTTounod uo 3oedwt dIACD IO IYBIT UT VOIOW
01 uoTIjlebITqo senp (0% SWI1 2UOC B paxIBW Tz Ad
00" uoTlonpay 3I=bpng
(pesTilasape se) 0GZ$ - Sond VSV
(posTiI2Ape SB) SHIS - sang YOON
(snsua) sn 0T0Z I2d IOTUSS/HT
'$ JO s3ex pa3edrIdTiuR YOOW) OLTIS - Send YODIW
00T saNa
-TO00ELS-2-0-000-000-0000-T%S-S-00TC
00" SE¥ sang TODELS

-000€L5-2-0-000-000-0000-TFS-5-00T0O
00° THAVIIL HIVIS NI ¥ "¥DS4NS‘sdnd 000ELS

rsuotjeaado
arnop-=21d o3 pesredwod T2ARI3 PoONPaI PLNUTIUOD
Jo uocTiedroTiue UT gz A4 IOJ UOTIONPSI UTRIUTER
"SUOTIDTIAISSI AIAOD O3
SNp TPABI] UT 9SB3I09p 1097I31 03 uoIlonpad Tz Ad
00°T uoTIdNPsY 396png

€09STO

Z09STO

Z09STO

209STO

C09STO

Z09STO

C09STO

CT¥STO

ZI%S10

CTPSTO

bxaydspbq
L

d

HDNVYHD
INEDIHA

Lsanday

TYALOY
daroarodd

Lapdndg £av
LNIJIIND NOILAI¥DSHEA INAODDOY r[O¥d LDIALHO

SLIDANd DONILVYHEdO 220¢ Ad TZC0Z NOILDIALOId L

SISEN0HY I1EDANE ILNIWIYYAHA

YILVAd FAIT - HOIMIYH A0 NMOL TT:LT O

2¥0
apand

TIsYoaTW=
z0Z/60/2T




#x TTPUDITW ATTwE AQ pPRieIausD - IJ0ddd J40 aNE +x

T9.= ¥T°885 ‘855 96 00€'LT¥ 9€° 1G9 '85% P STYLOL
9€°159 /859 'ONITIED 13DdNg
-6TLOES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00" 00" dSNOH LOTId 6TLOES Z09STO
-8TLOES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00° 00" YHAILNAD HLIYIH Ad4nd 8TLO0ES Z09STO
-LTLOES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00" 00" SANYTISI®ID SHADIAYAS SUHWIHHZTY LTLOES Z09STO
-9TLOES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00" 00" HIIVEH dd¥D dd100 9TLOES ZO09STO
-GTLOES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00° 00" DD 40 SYHISIS DIg%SJIAHLO¥E DIF STLOES E09ST0
-$TLOES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00" 00" dNo¥H I¥0ddNs saIlv FTL0ES Z09STO
-E€TLOES-2-0-000-000-0000-085-5-00T0
00° Q0" 00° 00" SHTANWOH ¥OJd TIDNNOD HIIVAYAINI ETLOES ZO09STO
-ZTLOES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00 00" 00" 00" TIDNNOD HOVANLNO HAVD ¥AMOT ZTLOES TO9STO
-TTLO0ES-2-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00" 00" doD HdV¥D A0 SHDIA¥ES TVOHT TTLOES Z09STO
-0TLOES-T-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00" 00" SADIAMHAS NYWNH DD 0TLOES Z09STO
-60L0£S-2-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00° 00" , 00" TIDNNOD HIONYISISSY ¥HWNSNOD 60L0ES E09STO
-80L0ES-2-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00" 00" HOHIH 80LOES Z09ST0
-L0L0ES-Z-0-000-000-0000-095-5-00T0
00" 00" 00" 00" AIINYd ATINYA LOLOES E09STO
HONVHD Lsandayd YLDV Laoand £av
ILNADYHA aaroarodd INZHIND NOILAI¥DSHA INNODDY LO¥d I1DALdO 2¥0

SLIDANG DNILVYAAJO Z20Z Ad TTZO0Z NOILOALOdd IdDANT

bajdspbq S1sANdAY ILADANT INIWIEIVAEA TI9Yd3TWs
8 d TIT:LT 020Z/60/2T

uoinjos dio 18141

siunw %




aduey) uanag

[srzvriiee s *[B301 0 Ad|
00°0Sb'Z S Z[=I0L) 00°05t'Z $ F1B30L]
00°0SE $ L isijeizads weadosq 00'05E S T 151|e123dg wesdog
D0°0SE S d2auQ Uy 00'05E S J3ALIQ UBA
00°0SE B 424) 00'05€ S =9
00°05€ S EST 00°DSE 3 esinN
00'05€ S P03 SHIAIS [R1205) 000SE S Pi00) SIVJAIBS [E1905
DOOSE g JURISISSY 2ANIaXg 00°0SE 3 UEIs|sSY @ARNIaxK]
00'0SE $ Joraig| 00°05€ B 10w8iia

PeUe) Jad snuog anea

86'860'SE

$ | TE0E

¥-8Y3IH

8STT pasodoid

3

l13s)epads wesdoig

[enuuy

KjanoH

uoneysEe

sinoy

OVSBOSE S| SINOYTZOLIe 91528 T-bV3H O3 E-pVIH|GOVL | SE3M SInr <- JUBaeA
SN0y BEE 18 BO'VTS
Tenuty Kanon GORESIISSe) SInoH

Q3ANN3 LNVYD - 98/ PUB SILE(ES PUNOY-IEI BLUlL-

68'668'05

S ‘esof|

0

ZAd

| VTIES'LS S :|e30] ] I
suoppsal Aypedes apwapued jo wyday puoaq papasu 1aluo] ot - s8e19n05 UTA Ayaam [BlUaWB|dANS Jupeuiwyd 1961’9 B S Xy o-TYaH [jeam {Rapedes uen pasnpas
[s1ys) 03 8np) a¥r1PA03 |FUCHIPPY OIADD 48ALIG URA
197
0S°€Z S [XYW STV WUEIBA[ QNS WA Jag JAALQ UEA vLEL S [N a-Tvan 1W3Y NEapoqIL|  Qng walg Jad 1aAna UeA,
0005 ¢ $ [ osEz S v e-Tvan 00T 031390N8 S¥[  qnswalg Jad JaAug uep 00vLET HEE3 H EEERSED 00T 031390N9 Y| QNS Wa|Q J3d Januq Uen
6TLITE $ [sanoy 961 e b TS #-TY3H 01 £-TVaH T6¢ uyor wWeyiey) JAALQ UBA
sInoy S6T 38 65025
00°ZIZ6 5 | 05°€T $ [xvw a-tvau Z6E Aqiey Teddis 13AUQ UBA, ZV'BES BT S|veez S [xvino-TvaH B YIey 1addiyg| J9AQ UBA
00'PES FT S | osEz S ivin 9-Tvan vt A1195 "21j09)| 1310 UEA BIGTLEL S S |sTvaH TrOT K] JaALIQ ue|
05EC § [XwiA 8- TvaH YHeS BIeAad Qns Waig 134 J3uD) PLET S [xwin 9-TvaH e Ba3enad ang Wwaig 1ad Jay3
%53 S |stwad E10[IPYD IBySH Qns Wwaig 12 jauy| vLTT S [rTvan ENOIELD 1aLEnT aNn5 Wajd 134 121
00'STSE S| osez S |X¥IN 9-Tv3IH 05T a3139an8 SV Gns wajq Jad 424 00'T95'E S| vEz [ ESERSEL] [ost a31390N4 5v| QRS WAIQ Jad YD
LTBE S [xwiA - TIvaH auer iaphy ans waq Ja4 AsinN S9BE 5 [xwroTIvad auer Japhy NS Wala 1od asInN
T9'9ES ©1 SO'SES [{0E/TT "AUUBY 5-TIWAH 01 b-TIVaH BIUENA Tuo|eg QNS wWalg Jad esinpy GE'GES 03 L8'EES |(OE/LT MUUE] p-TIW3H 03 £ TLVAH R Acn:mu_ qng wWa|g 1ad asinN
09°T90E RS S [ o-TIvaH 08 031390N8 5¥) qns Walq Jaq asinN 00°Z60°E S | so'ge $ [ o-TTvaH 0% Q3135004 sV qnS WalQ 13d 95NN
IBnULY ZZA4 Anon zzad UOREIRISSELD TT A4 sInoH [enuuY TZA4 AinoH TzAd UOREINSERD TT Ad SinoH
pesodoig

$3JE )y pUe SaLIE|eS PUNOY-IBIA Jlli-HEg

ZEVCIL § EEE 95'P26'0T  § 01|
- s - 3 T sijepads weifoig
- H - 5 JanuQ uep
OTE8ZT S £0°4Z5.SE4OSETS] PTI98 5 20" Z545E4¥L ETS) ]
L9056 S| (I0°.25.00,£80v5) LE0T09 S| 1050082 TrS) IsInN
2 s T S PI00] 5301AIa5 €205
55010t S (407, 76.6£.8v1E9] SO00S0Y B (L0 +255E+6L TEG) JUEISIESY eARNIaNg
= 5 - 3 1opaig
TZ A4 TZ A4

KiAS8uoT
9%E9°0 i@dueyd Juadiag
STZOY'8ZE S :|Ej0) BO'9EE'9ZE  § :je30) |
6ELLTOZS TEOE B v-8¥3H|[699 OTETPOTS n b-bVIH 01 E-pVIH|8TE | [¢ A4 101 Hi0ay pasodoig
PAPUNOI Har/SILG,SHM
Z0op) sinoy zzg 18
9T'SES (4M/siug.sim
1) sinoy 96 18 80'vZS
0S'PEE'TY S | osee S TXeW)9-TYIH | £Z8T 86'TLEEY S| vLET S Xew]o-TvIH [£Z8T D1i01d 18 TpuIT [Els)
95'9EE'SE S | Leor B T¥eW]+a-TTv3H | B80Z GET6L 98 ST 3 TXeW)+3-TTv3IH|880C Ty uesng ECLT
TSLEV'OS $ Tsinoy [951) shep| Z-8¥3H 01 T-8V3H| LZ8T V62185 S| (smoyszsr)shep| S-8vaH O ;-BVaAH | 28T | WIoH POuESnG | Pi00) SAOIAISG [BD0%
£ZTIR 8L LTS (SInoy SZZ e TOZES [sanoy
99¢) sAep gE 10 65975 75z) shep 9g e 19°08$
96°ETS LS S | 8K TES Txew]9-Zv3H | Z28T ££'080'85 S | 6LTES (xew]a-/vaH|zzat GoRIEy S | EISISSY BARNdANT
TETWETL S Tsanoy | 9T 01 S-TIN | £Z8T TE6PTOL 5 SInoy S-ZWN 01 TN | £28T [EETEE) 1opa.
8TTT) shep /110 8TZT) shep pT 38
9£L9'6E$ [s1n0Y 609) OTTL'BES (sinoy 60g)
shep /810 OTTL'8€5 sAep £81® [S9L LES
Jenuuy KjanoH uonesysse]d sinoy Jenuuy KanoH uoneajissey <inoq

SafeV| pue selejes

22 Ad - 193png sadey pue saliejes SuiSy uo [1DUno) ydimieH



0T A4 U1 00t Z$ Wolj 3583139p - (6 X 00ZS) 008'TS - Boid "Hodwi Jo) Buisiuanpy sadedsmap “Isii

%0

00"00E'T

w

00°'00€'T S

006'C S

(2 x 05Z5) 005 - sBunsod qor Jadedsman

Buisiuanpy

00T¥ES

ZIPSTO

audea-1sod (1eah ||y
1o} pue) 3|eds jjny 1e 3winsal 03 Ajayy| weiSoud se uoRINPal [euONOUN - SUIpuny TZ A4 PRINpal SulUIBIUIRI (310N

‘sHun ¢y - 6T0Z/0T ‘sHun €€ - 8T0Z/0T
MEH] “1eRA/S1IUN QT [RUOCIIIPPE JO) MO||E PINOM BSERIDUI pasodolq “1eaA 158| Ul 191Ud))
AeQ SUB3LIQ Je 3dUBpPURLIE Ul 25RAIDUI APRI]S UAIS SABH "UYIUOW/SHUN b Alazewixoidde J0j SMO||B UORIBINI[ED 0Z Ady

UOI1e|NJ|Ed OZ A4 - (0TS X $HM ZG X ¥Mm/sHUN 0T) 00F'0TS - wetBold a1e) Aeq

%0

00°00%'s

Rl

00°00%'S S

SUE3|JQ pualie 0] SIOIUaS YdImaeH 104 Apisqns aled Aeq aaiuoddng

S3JIAIBS Y03 /|euoIsSajold

0060€S

[482:3]

"suonesado a}SUO B|EIS ||N} JWINS3J 3M [IUN PIPaaU ag JOU [Im suoiels adims |Bu

PY :310N

sucijels adims [3ppe g 10§ 009S + WISAS UIRL 4O} 0002$

%0

00°000'Z

R%

00000°C S

009 S

W3)5AS PASE]-CaM JO “JUIBL 1O} S]SO3 IOMIDU "UUE IDJUSD JOIUSS AN

Bupiomiay Jandwo)

0TOorZS

[48490]

(000°$ "2nue) spung jJuess ejnwio4 Juisn suiydew 421dod aseyding :ajoN

*(51502 9842A0 Y1Mm JeaA J9A0 JB3A Wa|qoid JUa)SISUOD
- YA pUB AJ913Wa7) Yim 35N paseys o3 anp saouemolje Adod 152431y} 005 ZS - Juawaaide aalaias/aoueuajulew 131do)

%9E-

00°005°C

W

00°9€6'E $

9E6'T &

(84T$ x syyuow €) yeSS - asea| Jaldod Jeah g Bunsixe o aso|)

32AI8S g Juiely Jaidod

£00¥2S

TIVSTO

0SES - 591042019 P|oy 73 JLid

(€ X 05%) 0STS - SP4ed sNq ysiua|day

%0

00°0ST

00°0ST S

V0D 10) Bunuig -asiiy

Buuig

1reees

ZIvsTo

(T
X 0STS) 00ES - 238 'saulaap anudod Suiziudodal ‘suonenyis Aauasiawsa o} Sulpuodsal pue SuiAjiauapi a1 (s103sIA

Alpualyy ‘siaaup [eaipaw §'3 ‘sioluas yum auole Suiaq s|iejus J40Mm 3soym sjoA 10}) Buluie.l J33JUN|OA [BUORIPPY

(£x sayddns pue asinod 10} 0ST$) 05b$ - (10102410 42y UMO WaIp Jad ‘JaY) UMO]) UOREDJNIBI DJESAISS

{0Z X 0STS) 00€S - BuiBe 121 Buluiel) 331A13s-U] J33JUN|OA

(0SS ¥ 9) DOES - eI J0) SBunaaW/Fulules) "IsIAl

(¥ % 057$) D00'TS - Jels Joy Buuiely ASojouyaa] f13Indwod

(€% 057$) 05.L$ - sI2quWaw yeys € 105 "Ba1 Juod YOIN

(Z X 05TS) 00£S - Buide 1a1 Bululey 221AI9s-UL JRIS

(S x0Z$) 00TS - He3s (4eaup-uou) Buluiewal o) Buluies] Iy 3s1i4 g HdD [enuuy

b1

00°085'E

00'0ET'E $

DET'E 8

( X 0ZS) 089 - s42AuQ Joj Bululel] piy 15114 3 ¥dD Uuy palinbay

|2A=Q Joud/3u

0£06TS

CIPSTO

TEAA-TZ A
a8uey)
bR TER]

15anbay Zz A4

1BI0L TZ Ad

1101 02 Ad

NOWLYIELLSNr

NOILdI¥IS3a

rao

940

(0z0z/v/2T pannwqns ‘ysanbay |ejuswiiedaq [enul) ZZ Ad - NOLLVIIHILSNT 1390NG JYNLIANIAXI YOI HIIMYVH




00€S - 1 Aduadiawa uep,

002 - sW.oy 2417 J0 314

0SZ$ - SULICY S3USIA oAl

0055 - sssupaiedaid Aouadiawsa Joj s3eg 34D

%0 00°0St‘T S | 000St'T S| 0St'T S s31|ddng w03 IsIN saijddng pauisse|pun (00085S ZIPST0
0055 - 2
%0 00°00S s | oo'00s s | oos S ‘sdinas 3se3 ‘saijddns pie 3511 ‘sadim joyoale ‘saA0|3 *joul sanddns NY 2SI salddns 2210 sasInN|0F00SS ZIPSIO0
‘Aep/sjeaw -0t 01 UMOp Aep/sjeaws g wouy sarow Sulpuny JuaeAInbl "JUBLWASINQWISI
VI3 0 uonesidxa 01 anp Aep Jad saydunj ul SSO| 18U ‘JIONIMOH ‘Tz A4 01 Juipuny 1uajeainba daay :a30N
e Y : =) .
AL | 9 TVILTOUOV IS T AN | 3
1ERIIE-GEAH-POIIRER PLDIRH-IH—{r 55t Oetr=o1ed 5e ¥ 51oddnRSTTIO8IFS—aRiaddns
%0 00°0LT'vY $ | 00°0L6'EY $ | og6'ee 5 sweigoad Bujuig vQD Joj s21jddns g pooy saljddng 221135 poo4 3 poo4| 00065 ZIPSTO
(%S + 00E'VS = "31IUB 0T A4 PUB [BN1IE 6T Ad 93elany)
suoionaysul 323png BunesadQ 17 A4 V1 Jad 25BaIdUl %G iUy
%0 00°SIS'Y $ | oos1S'Y S| o66°€ S Boud uonepodsuer yoeod Auaquer) 1o [an4 12n4 4Ing (00T 8PS TIPSTO
007S - eale uondadal/isijenads weisdold Joj Jauiged Buljy man
002$ - sap uoindadal Joy jaued Adenlsd ysap ajqeyoels
%0 00005 $ | oo00s S | ooz $ 00TS - H1eyd 3130 man uswdinbl 32140 |00TZ S TIFSTO
(ow ZT x 0SS ) 00¥TS - M@
%0 00'00%'2Z $ | 0000¥'T S | oov'z $ suad ‘satjddns Buijiy ‘sjaqe| Jauoy ‘Jaded *pui saiddns 3oujo vOD ISIN saijddns 32130 |000Z 75 TTPSTO
siopuaa duiwwesdord ajowai Jo (ajes
) Sunuwes3oad 2115uo J0j Aed 03 00YS HIBQG PPE - ZZ Ad ‘S1500 POO) ISEIIIUI IS0 0] JUSWUIBLIAIUS 10§ Sulpuny
3eUIWI[F "JUBWILI}/3UIIDRA [1IUN JUIWUIELIRIUS Yum gn|) 13ddns ausuo Jujwinsal ajedpnue Jou oq 310N
OTX00ZS ‘17 Ad - (9 X 00Z$) 007'TS - sweiBoud dads Joj siopuan g Juawuieaiue -ads
(00ZS X 2) 00t - siedisAyd yuawAhojdwa-aid
%ST 00°000°2 S | 00009t S | oot¥'e S (0STS X ZT) 008'TS - uBWUIRWRIL] qn|) Jeddns S22IA135 PaseydInd | 0008€S ZIPSTI0
0965 = (spuny jues3 Buisn paseyaind
2q o} auoyd) auoyd/yjuow/pps xoidde ejep |,ppy "10}I81I( PUB PIOO]) SADIAIAS [BI20S 10} auoyd ||92 3SBYIINg
%0 009462 S | oo9se'z s | ovp't 3 "P100D $3IIAISS [BI20S ‘NY UMO] 10} PEd! g UBA ‘NY umo] 10y sauoyd 13D elepaja L /auoydala) | 00vrES ZIPSIO
07 Ad 10} 0FZS Woly asealdap - (7 X 09%) OZTS - S8uljlew ‘oA 2ads Joj a3e1s0d
%L1 00°02ZS'S s | 00021’ s | ove's $ piepuels Buiked uaym 3500 ajgnop xoidde - (sBuljiew Ajyiuowig g x 006$) 00F'SS - Jo1vsmau Ajyiuow-1q Joy 81504 a3e1sod |00EvES ZIFSTO

-sanuniioddo SunuweiSosd 310Wa1 MU SPIBMO) SBAOW YD SE Spe 10) Suipuny paywiy
u1e3a4 01 [N “f 03 SPe g wioly 3uiwiwesdo.d yueyiodun oy Buisiaape Jadedsmau ul uoPNPaY :07/S/8 210N




(98°29) S TTA4-TC Ad 28ueyd ieN

10°0- | vrsee’sey  $ [ ootov'sey § [wvtot'ssy § | 1390n8 V101 vOD|
%T- v1'ZT0E6E S | 00°691°96€ S | ¥6S'LLE S ‘SIDOVM ONV SIIUVIVS TVLOL
%¥ 00'9Z€‘Z8 S | oo'zez’sL $ | £0S'2e s | :s3unLian3dxa w10l
1s9nbay 7z A4 TZMd 0z A
(pasnJanpe se) 0SZ § - 53nQ VSV
[pasiianpe se) GHTS - sang YOIN
%PST 00°S0S'T $ | 00'Sey S| T9sT S (snsua) sn 010z Jad Joluas/pg S Jo a3ed paysiqnd YOIIN) OTT'TS - $3nA YOIIN $aNqA|TO0ELS ZIPSTo
“JUIWISINGWISI [2AB] JO YLIOM SUIUOW 7T UIR13. 3SNW pue 1noy3noiy] s1ISIA 3WOY panuiuod sey
BSINN UMO] "6T AIAQD 0 13SU0 YHM [SABI] 311S JJO/SHISIA BWOY Ul UO1IINPalL 0] aNp SYlUowWw g 0} SIUIWISINGLUISI
HEIS "ISIW pue SYIuowW § 03 SIUBWISINIBI [9ARI] "PIO0) SBIIAIIS [EID0S PUE 103I2.11Q RINPIY :0Z/S/8 210N
(s0W ZT X §2$) 00ES - quIIaY [aAel | JelS “IsIi
(sow 7T x 0¥S) 08FS - quiIay [aAel] “NQ
(sOW 7T X 6/5) 006S - qUIIaY [aARI| 3SINN UMO]
(SOW ZT X 0SS) 009 - QWIDY [3ARI| "PIOOD "AJ3S 20§
%0 00°098°T $ | 00098'T $ |08zt S SHISIA BWIOY 10NPU0D 73 SBUIIRW puanle O Jels JO4 "quiidy [aned| [9ABI] 31B1S-U||000TLS ZTIprsTo
00ZS - s|elajew adunosal Buiuueld Soud -asiy




TOWN OF HARWICH
Council on Aging
100 Oak Street

HARWICH, MA 02645
TEL: (508) 430-7550

To:  Larry Ballantine, Chairman
Harwich Board of Selectmen

From: Council on Aging
Richard Waystack, Chairman
Carol Thayer, Vice Chairman
Ralph Smith
James Mangan
Joanne Lepore
Angelina Chilaka
Justin White, HFD

CC:  Joseph Powers, Interim Town Administrator
Emily Mitchell, Director, Harwich Council on Aging

Date: December 8, 2020
RE:  Annual Meeting with the Board of Selectmen

The Council on Aging, in this annual report to the Board of Selectmen, continues to promote
our mission which 1s to support and advocate for older adults, their families, and caregivers.

The Council serves this mission in a variety of ways. In ordinary circumstances, we organize or
sponsor programs designed to meet a wide variety of seniors’ needs including entertainment,
health and fitness, socialization, nutrition, and more. We bring in SHINE counselors who assist
residents in navigating the complicated world of health insurance, attorneys who specialize in
Elder Law, caseworkers from the Homeless Prevention Council, specialists in providing foot
care, specialized support groups, a monthly dental clinic, and video conferencing technology
that allows people to make appointments regarding Social Security without having to travel to
the Hyannis office. We provide free transportation to any resident who needs it to all Council



® Page?2 December 8, 2020
on Aging programming as well as to the Family Pantry, the library, local grocery stores, and
further locations as well.

This past year saw the loss of a caring, dedicated member of our Board, Lee Culver. So much
has been said about Lee and his contributions, not only to the Council on Aging and the older
adults of Harwich, but to the entire community. His leadership, counsel and passion were a
cornerstone of his service. He is sorely missed, but his legacy will remain with the Council on
Aging.

With the onset of COVID-19 in March 2020, the COA had to overhaul all operations. With
older adults facing some of the highest health and mortality risks associated with virus, coupled
with the impact of extended isolation on physical, mental, and cognitive health, the need for
COA services has never been higher. The department transitioned from majority onsite services
to a community based model and prioritized resources to meet the most essential needs.
Without missing a day, the COA switched from onsite lunches to no-contact community
distributions. They are currently serving approximately 60-70 meals per day and 85 individuals
each week. They’ve partnered with the Family Pantry and local grocery stores and pharmacies
to ensure continuous access to food, medications, and other essentials. Transportation services
continue and are operating with greatly reduced capacity (2 riders/trip rather than 12 riders/trip
pre-COVID) and under enhanced sanitation protocols. The COA van has expanded ride
locations to include pharmacies, banks, and the Post Office, as well as to essential medical
appointments (a need previously met by volunteer drivers; service absorbed onto COA van to
allow appropriate physical distancing).

Beginning in July, the COA resumed limited onsite services. These include appointments with
staff as well as 1:1 meetings with professionals including podiatry care, Mobile Dental Hygiene
Clinic, elder law attorneys, and the Town Nurse Wellness Clinic. They continue to facilitate
remote services, notably with SHINE counselors for assistance with the Medicare Open
Enrollment process. The department has worked to bring fun programming to people at home,
distributing activity kits, fitness equipment, indoor vegetable gardening projects, and more,
They have partnered with volunteers and with the Academic Public Health Volunteer Corps to
provide ongoing opportunities for socialization. Outreach services continue in a modified
format to help people with benefits applications, needs assessment, and connection to resources
that allow people to remain safely and independently in their homes.

We continue to utilized and maximize our software, My Senior Center, which has allowed the
Council to better serve the needs of our members. It has become an absolute necessity in this
difficult year of Covid. This software allows us to manage events, track program attendance
and volunteer hours, to communicate with members in a variety of ways, and to track statistics
that are useful both for program evaluation and when applying for grant funding. The
communication tools, which include the ability to send robocalls and to generate groups and
email lists, have been enormously helpful. Staff can send event reminders, distribute the
newsletter electronically, and provide information to our most at risk clients during
emergencies.



® Page 3 December 8, 2020
We document attendance for all events and programs, volunteer hours, and transportation
services. In total for FY 20, we served 1546 unique individuals. FY 21 statistics are harder to
capture. Many programs and events remain on hold. Many of the services and supports
currently provided by the COA are offered by phone and email and are therefore harder to
quantify. Of services we do keep detailed statistics for, we have distributed meals to 167 unique
individuals, transported 86 individuals, delivered groceries to 43 people, distributed at home
activities to approximately 300 people, served approximately 250 people onsite for 1:1
appointments with staff’ and professionals, and have provided professional and social support
through thousands of phone calls.

As a note, all these statistics are likely an underrepresentation of the number of people served,
as so program participants are inconsistent in following the sign in process. Modified service
provision during COVID has further impacted program sign in, as most services are offered
remotely without a formal sign-in. Additionally, these numbers do not capture the extensive
work of the Social Services Coordinator, Town Nurse, and Director done outside the COA
including home visits, nursing care, and events held offsite.

Additionally, the bimonthly COA newsletter which serves as the primary source for sharing
information about COA programs and resources with the public, is mailed to approximately
1,900 homes each month. The COA no longer has the ability to utilize a non profit postage rate
to mail our newsletter and we thank the generosity of the Friends of The Harwich Council on
Aging for assisting with these unanticipated costs for FY 21. With the help of dedicated
volunteers, another 300 copies are distributed to public locations around town including Town
Hall, the libraries, Public Safety, and area housing complexes and medical offices. With the use
of My Senior Center, we are now able to distribute the newsletter via email as well!

Once again, there has been a change in personnel in the department. Susanna Keith, Social
Services Coordinator left and we were very fortunate to promote Julie Witas, our Program
Specialist I, to the position. Ms. Witas has worked diligently since her promotion to cover the
essential functions of both positions. She has a background in case management, program
management, and healthcare research.

The Council on Aging could not provide the breadth and scope of programs and services
without the aid of our 90 plus volunteers. Their donations of time, energy, and experience make
our Council successful in reaching out to the countless members of our community who we
serve. During non-COVID operations, our volunteers provide health insurance counscling
through the SHINE program, offer specialized legal counseling, income tax preparation, rides
to medical appointments, friendly visiting, and telephone reassurance. They also prepare, serve,
and deliver meals, and many serve as the first smiling and helpful faces you see when you walk
into the COA offices. During COVID, we have recruited many new volunteers to deliver
meals and groceries, help with special projects, and recently, to resume assistance with
reception services. Though volunteer services like medical transportation and Friendly Visiting
are temporarily on hold, volunteers have found new ways to get involved and to serve



¢ Page4 December 8, 2020
community needs.To translate this service into numbers, volunteers provide upwards of 5,600
hours of service each year— this is roughly equivalent to three full-time staff members!

Our Volunteer Recognition events have been suspended due to an abundance caution. We look
forward toresuming them i 2021 once it is safe to do so and contingent on public health trends
and local, state, and federal guidelines. . The Board and Council are committed to holding two
volunteer recognition events every year, as we could not provide the scope of services we offer
without their support.

The COA has an exceptional relationship with the Friends of the Harwich Council on Aging
under President Jack Brown, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization which supports programs and
needs outside of the town budget for our seniors. A member of the COA attends Friends
meetings monthly to coordinate programs and to continue to monitor the needs our senior
population. Through their generosity, they have helped provide emergency assistance to
seniors in need, purchased needed medical equipment for the COA to distribute, and covered
the unanticipated postage costs for the bimonthly newsletter to ensure the COA can rely on this
mechanism to share up to date information about programs and services with the community.

Our relationship with the Department statf continues to excel. Emily Mitchell, Director, Julie
Witas, Social Services Coordinator, Susan Jusell, Town Nurse, Linda St. Pierre, Town Chef,
Marie Carlson, Executive Assistant, and our dedicated Van Drivers, all of whom serve as
integral members of the team in providing the services and programs that enable our seniors to
be active, thriving members of our community.

The Council on Aging normally meets monthly, the first Wednesday of each month at the
Community Center at 10:00 AM. Due to the pandemic, we have migrated to the Town’s online
platform as required. The Board did not meet from April through August, as the Town was
prioritizing meetings of regulatory boards and committees during that time. We were eager to
resume meetings in September once authorized and we are anxious to resume in person
meetings when free to do so. Mr. Donald Howell is the liaison to the Council on Aging, and
we appreciate his availability as our link to the Board of Selectmen. Our posted meetings are
open to the public, and we welcome any and all who share in our mission of providing
comprehensive support for the older adult population in Harwich. Our members' attendance is
excellent, and we are awaiting the appointment of alternate member, Lt. Justin White of the
Harwich Fire Department to a full member of the Council.

It is our honor and pleasure to assist the residents of Harwich, their families and caregivers; we
thank you for the opportunity to serve!



